
 
 

 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: Tuesday, 22nd September, 2020 
Time: 6.00 pm. 
Venue: Zoom 

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by 
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 

1   Apologies   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2   Declarations of Interest   

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 

or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 

those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 

of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

3   Urgent Items of Business   

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 

which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 

be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

4   Minutes  4 - 11 

 To consider the Minutes of the Meeting of the Corporate Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee held 4th August 2020 

 

5   Health Related Absence Report  12 - 19 

 Head of Human Resources to report 

 

 

 

Public Document Pack



6   Employment Equality Report  20 - 30 

 Head of Human Resources to report  

7   Resources Directorate Plan 2020/2021  31 - 46 

 To consider the 2020/2021 Directorate Plan for the Resources 

Directorate 

 

8   Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020/2021  47 - 63 

 To consider the 2020/2021 Directorate Plan for the Neighbourhoods 

Directorate 

 

9   3rd & 4th Quarter Corporate Complaints  64 - 75 

 Corporate complaints received in the third and fourth quarters of 

2019/2020 

 

10   Financial Update (Period 4) 2020/2021  76 - 102 

 Chief Finance Officer to report  

11   Revenue Budget 2021/2022 to 2023/2024   

 Chief Finance Officer to report  

12   Capital Programme 2021/2022 to 2025/2026   

 Chief Finance Officer to report  

13   Discretionary Fees and Charges 2021/2022   

 Chief Finance Officer to report  

14   Greater Manchester Corporate Issues and Reform Overview & 

Scrutiny Committee.  

103 - 106 

 Minutes of the meeting of the Greater Manchester Corporate Issues 
and Reform Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 16th June 2020. 

 



 
 

 
 

15   Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme 

2020/2021  

107 - 111 

 To note the Committee’s Work Programme 2020/2021  

16   Exclusion of Press and Public   

 To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 

part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 

likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 

Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 

interest would not be served in publishing the information.  

 

17   Cyber Security  112 - 127 

 Presentation by the Assistant Director (Information, Customers and 

Communities) 

 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members 
Councillor David Bamford                      Councillor Malcolm Boriss 
Councillor Michael Holly (Chair)             Councillor Peter Joinson 
Councillor Amna Mir                               Councillor Kallum Nolan 
Councillor Shaun O'Neill (Vice Chair)     Councillor Liam O'Rourke 
Councillor Faisal Rana                            Councillor Linda Robinson 
Councillor Elsie Wraighte 
 
For more information about this meeting, please contact:- 
Peter Thompson 
Committees and Constitutional Services 
 
Telephone: 01706 924715 
E-Mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

 

 
 
 



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Tuesday, 4th August 2020 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Holly (in the Chair); Councillors Boriss, Joinson, Mir, 
Nola, O’Neill, O’Rourke, Rana, Robinson and Wraighte.  
 
OFFICERS: M. Widdup (Director of Neighbourhoods), N. Thornton (Director 
of Resources), Samantha Smith (Deputy Chief Finance Officer), V. White 
(Neighbourhoods Directorate), M. Ashworth and P. Thompson (Resources 
Directorate).  
 

1 APOLOGIES 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Bamford.  
 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interests. 
 

3 MINUTES 
Resolved: 
That the minutes of the meetings of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meeting held 13th January 2020 and 11th February 2020 be 
approved as correct records and signed by the Chair. 
 

4 TOWNSHIPS PLAN 2020-2022 
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods which 
outlined the Townships Plan for 2020-2022.  
  
In line with the Council’s Corporate Plan, the Townships Plan 2020–2022 has 
been developed around the following priorities: Prosperous People and 
Places. The Chairs and Vice Chairs of the five township Committees had 
worked with Officers and the Portfolio Holder for Neighbourhoods, Community 
and Culture to produce the new Townships Plan. 
 
The Townships Plan identified priorities to be determined by each Township’s 
Councillors as a focus for action during the 2020 – 2022 period. The Plan 
gathered aspirations and ideas together as a focus for decision makers, 
Council Services, partner agencies and the voluntary and community sector 
active in the Borough. The Townships Plan identified priorities determined by 
each Township’s Councillors as a focus for action over the period of the Plan. 
This plan gathers aspirations and ideas together as a focus for decision 
makers, Council Services, partner agencies and the voluntary and community 
sector active in the Rochdale Borough. 
  
The Committee was advised that the Townships Plan formed part of the 
Council’s Policy Framework. The Plan was a live document that could evolve 
and change to meet any new opportunities and initiatives which arose, and 
could therefore be updated to reflect changes moving forward. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



The Chair suggested that the Committee consider establishing a short life 
study group, comprising members of the Committee, to examine the role of 
Township Committees within the organisation, including the delegation and 
responsibility of functions and services and the allocation of resources.  
 
Resolved: 

1. That the detail included in the Townships Plan 2020-2022 be noted. 
2. That the establishment of a study group to examine the role of Township 

Committees, be delegated to the Chair and Vice Chair of this Committee to 
consider in the first instance. 
 

5 RESOURCES AND NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE PLANS 2019-20 
QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE UPDATE 
The Committee received a joint report of the Director of Resources and the 
Director of Neighbourhoods detailing the progress at the end of Quarter 4 
2019/2020 (1st January 2020 – 31st March 2020) towards achievements of 
targets contained in the Resources Directorate Plan 2019/2020 and in the 
Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019/2020. 
 
In considering the Resources Directorate element of the report, Members 
were updated on the five actions that were still outstanding at 31st March 2020 
and which had received an ‘amber’ rating. These included the Council’s 
governance arrangements, which had been addressed largely through a 
report that recommended changes to the authority’s Constitution that was 
approved by Council on 15th July 2020 and the roll-out of the I-Trent Human 
Resources software package.  
 
In considering the Neighbourhoods Directorate element of the report, 
Members were updated on the five actions that were still outstanding at 31st 
March 2020. 
 
With regards to the Neighbourhoods Directorate a Member referred to action 
R19008 (Implementation of the Risk Management Strategy), which noted that 
Cyber Insurance had been identified as a possible ‘Red-ranked’ technical 
security risk and in this regard the Director of Neighbourhoods undertook to 
submit a report to the next meeting of the Committee detailing the relevant 
issues surrounding Cyber Security including the potential threats and 
measures that were being taken to counter the threat.   
 
A Member referred to action NDP1901.A (Domestic Abuse Strategy for the 
Borough) noting that the Strategy was still in its draft stage, with the final roll-
out delayed due to the impact of Covid-19. The Director of Neighbourhoods 
undertook to submit a report to a future meeting of the Committee regarding 
the roll-out of the Domestic Abuse Strategy.  
 
A Member referred to action NDP1906.A (Determination of the 
Communications Priorities) and requested that a report on this matter be 
submitted to a future meeting of the Committee. 
 

Page 5



The Committee requested that the current Directorate Plans relating to the 
Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorates be submitted to the Committee’s 
next meeting in September 2020, to help the Committee inform the Committee 
of its work programme for 2020/2021. 
 
Resolved: 

1. The Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2019-2020 - Quarter 4 
Performance be noted. 

2. The Director of Neighbourhoods be requested to submit a report to the next 
meeting of the Committee detailing the relevant issues surrounding Cyber 
Security, including the potential threats and any measures that were being 
taken to counter these potential threats. 

3. The Director of Neighbourhoods be requested to submit a report to a future 
meeting of the Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee regarding the roll-out of the Domestic Abuse Strategy. 

4. The Director of Neighbourhoods be requested to submit a report to a future 
meeting of the Committee detailing the Council’s ‘communications priorities’ 
further to action NDP1906.A 

5. The current Directorate Plans relating to the Resources and Neighbourhoods 
Directorates be submitted to the Committee’s next meeting in September 
2020, to help the Committee inform the Committee of its work programme for 
2020/2021. 
 

6 BUDGET 2021/22 TO 2023/24 GUIDELINES AND TIMETABLE 
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer that had 
recommended to the Cabinet, at its meeting on 28th July 2020, approval of the 
budget guidelines, timetable and methods of public engagement to be used in 
preparing the budget and provisional budgets for 2021/22 and 2023/24. 
 
The Council was legally obliged to set a balanced budget and the submitted 
report set out a planning process for the budget including details of the 
assumptions used in the preparation of the budget to ensure they were 
agreed, reasonable and consistently applied by all services. The Committee 
noted that the Council’s Cabinet, at its meeting on 28th July 2020, had 
approved the recommendations that were set out in paragraph 2 of the 
submitted report. 
 
Decision:  

1. That the proposed budget timetable, as detailed at Appendix 1 of the 
submitted report, be noted. 

2. That the revenue assumptions as detailed at Appendix 2 of the submitted and 
which the Cabinet had agreed be incorporated into the budget setting 
process, be noted. 

3. That the revenue and capital budget principles referred to in Appendices 3 
and 4 of the submitted report, be noted. 

4. The proposed methods of public engagement that were outlined in the 
submitted report, to be included as part of the 2021/22 budget setting process, 
be noted. 

5. The Committee notes the Revenue Budget update detailed in the submitted 
report.  

Page 6



 
7 FINANCE UPDATE REPORT PERIOD 2 2020/21 

The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer which had 
sought approval, from the Cabinet at its meeting held 28th July 2020, in 
respect of the Budget pressures requests, including £18,000 for Wardle and 
Smallbridge Football Club (as referred to Cabinet from the Pennines 
Township Committee), approval for the transfer of budget from the 
Equalisation Reserve to the five Township Committees, and which detailed 
the forecast 2020/21 financial positions for Revenue, Capital, and the 
Collection Fund as at the end of May 2020. 
 
The Committee was informed that the forecast Revenue position, was 
providing a projected pressure of £17,639k. The budget pressures relating to 
Covid-19 were £29,059k, which had been partially offset by the use of 
government funding re Covid-19 of £13,616k. Non-Covid-19 pressures were 
reported as being £2,196k.  Forecast Capital expenditure was £156,560k, 
after a re-phasing of £5,447k, budget returns of £2,065k, grant reductions of 
£2,640k and a grant increase of £192k.  The Collection Fund position was 
indicating a deficit of £30,450k, which would be partially mitigated by 
increased government Section 31 grant of £20,950k, leaving a residual 
pressure of £9,500k. 
 
A Member referred to the submission of discretionary fees and charges , 
which would be scrutinised at an upcoming meeting of this Committee and 
requested that the Cabinet be recommended that proposals for discretionary 
fees and charges in 2012/2022 and future years be rounded up or down, as 
appropriate, to the nearest multiple of £5. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the forecast 2020/21 financial positions for Revenue, Capital, and the 
Collection Fund as at the end of May 2020 be noted. 

2. The Cabinet be advised of this Committee’s request that proposals for 
discretionary fees and charges in 2012/2022 and future years be rounded up 
or down as appropriate to the nearest multiple of £5. 
 

8 TREASURY MANAGEMENT YEAR-END REPORT 2019/20 
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer that 
summarised the Council’s treasury management activity in the 2019/20 
financial year and which also highlighted compliance with the Council’s 
Treasury Management Strategy and with regulatory/legislative requirements. 
The report found that the Council had adhered to key prudential indicators 
during the year and that treasury activity had contributed a net underspend 
(excluding Airport activity) of £1,756M on its revised budget for the year.   
 
The Committee was advised that the Council was required by regulations 
issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to produce an annual review of 
its treasury management activities together with the actual prudential and 
treasury indicators for the previous year. In considering the report, the 
Committee noted that the report had been considered by the Council’s 
Cabinet at its meeting on 28th July 2020. 

Page 7



 
Resolved: 
That the report be noted.  
 

9 CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME 2020/2021 
Members considered the Committee’s Work Programme for 2020/2021, which 
outlined the Committee’s programme of reports during 2020/2021. 
 
The Committee was asked to consider moving the dates of their scheduled 
meetings in September 2020, from Tuesday, 8th to Tuesday 22nd September 
2020 to accommodate a timely consideration of proposals for the Council’s 
2021/2022 budgetary process. 
 
Members expressed concerns about the lack of information relating to 
activities at the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA). As a partial 
means of addressing this and raising awareness of GMCA amongst Rochdale 
Borough Council Members, it was requested that the agendas for future 
meetings of this Committee include copies of the minutes of meetings of 
GMCA Scrutiny Committees.   
 
A Member requested that a report relating School’s Funding be included on 
the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Work 
Programme.  
 
Resolved: 

1. The Committee’s Work Programme 2020/2021 be noted. 
2. The date of the meeting of the Committee in September 2020 be moved from 

Tuesday, 8th September 2020 to Tuesday, 22nd September 2020. 
3. Agendas for future meetings of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee include copies of the minutes, of meetings of Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority Scrutiny Committees.   

4. A report relating School’s Funding be included on the Health, School and 
Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Work Programme. 
 

10 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following item of business, in accordance with the provisions of Section 
100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. 
 

11 PROPERTY INVESTMENTS - PERFORMANCE AND RISK QUARTER 
4:2019/2020 
The Committee scrutinised a confidential report of the Director of Resources 
which informed Members of the performance of the Council’s commercial 
property investments in financial year 2019/20, and highlight the associated 
risks. The report also demonstrated that the Commercial Investment 
Fund/Asset Development Fund investments had achieved the appropriate 
performance targets that had been established for this activity.  
 

Page 8



The report presented the balances remaining within the respective Property 
Growth Funds and had recommended that the Commercial Investment Fund 
and Direct Development Fund be amalgamated at the earliest opportunity in 
the 2020/2021 financial year.  
 
Members were advised that this report had been considered previously by the 
Property Growth Fud Sub-Committee at its meeting held 7th July 2020. 
  
Resolved:  
1. The report be noted.  
2. The Committee notes the decision of the Property Growth Fund Sub-
Committee to approve the amalgamation of the Commercial Investment Fund 
and Direct Development Fund, with immediate effect.  
 

Page 9



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
Actions List (August 2020) 
 

ISSUE/MEETING 
REQUESTED 

ACTION RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER(S) 

TIMESCALE OUTCOME 

Date of next meeting of 
the Corporate O&S 
Committee  

To change the date of next 
meeting of the Corporate O&S 
Committee from 8th to 22nd 
September 2020 

Peter Thompson  22nd September 2020  

Townships Plan 2020-
2022 
 

Chair and Vice Chair of the 
Committee to meet to consider 
the establishment of a study 
group to examine the role of 
Township Committees. 
 

Peter Thompson During 2020/2021  

Cyber Insurance Director of Neighbourhoods to 
submit a report/presentation to 
the next meeting of the 
Committee detailing the relevant 
issues surrounding Cyber 
Security 

Director of 
Neighbourhoods/Assistant 
Director (Information, 
Customers and 
Communities)  

Next meeting (22nd 
September 2020 

 

Domestic Abuse 
Strategy 

Director of Neighbourhoods to 
submit a report to a future 
meeting of the Communities 
Regeneration and Environment 
O&S Committee regarding the 
Borough’s Domestic Abuse 
Strategy 

Director of 
Neighbourhoods/Assistant 
Director (Information, 
Customers and 
Communities) 

During 2020/2021  

Council’s 
Communications 
Priorities 

Director of Neighbourhoods to 
submit a report to a future 
meeting of the Committee 

Director of 
Neighbourhoods/Assistant 
Director (Information, 

During 2020/2021  

P
age 10



regarding the Council’s 
‘communications priorities’ 

Customers and 
Communities) 

Directorate Plans  The current Directorate Plans 
relating to the Resources and 
Neighbourhoods Directorates be 
submitted to the Committee’s 
next meeting in September 
2020. 

Director of Resources and 
Director of Neighbourhoods 

Next meeting (22nd 
September 2020 

 

Minutes of GMCA 
Scrutiny Committee 
meetings 

Future agendas for meetings of 
Corporate O&S Committee, 
wherever possible, to include the 
minutes, of meetings of Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority 
Scrutiny Committees.   
 

Peter Thompson Future meetings of 
the Corporate 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee  

 

Funding of Local 
Authority Schools 
 

A report detailing the School’s 
Funding Programme to be 
recommended for inclusion on 
the Health, School and Care 
O&S Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Peter Thompson   During 2020/2021  

Insurance Claims An annual report covering 
insurance claims will be 
presented to the Committee in 
the autumn of 2020, to align with 
the insurance annual cycle 
(September – September) 

Director of Resources Report to the 
Corporate O&S 
Committee in autumn 
2020 

 

 

P
age 11



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

Date of Meeting 22 September 2020 
Portfolio Corporate & Resources 
Report Author Rosemary Barker 
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Health Related Absence Reporting 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. The report provides third quarter, fourth quarter and year end health related 

absence figures to Members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 
Overall the number of days lost per FTE is 9.67 for 2019/20 with the main 
reasons for absence being stress/depression and operative/post-operative.  
The directorates with the highest number of days lost per FTE are Adult 
Care, Children’s Services and Neighbourhoods. 
 
Looking at the latter part of 2019/20, the third quarter health related absence 
figures (October - December 2019) indicate that 2.73 days per FTE were 
lost, with an decrease in the fourth quarter (January – March 2020) to 2.60 
days per FTE lost. 
 
Although not relevant to the reporting period for this report, appendix one 
details an overview of recorded Covid-19 related absences. 
 

Recommendation 

 
2. It is recommended that Members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee notes the Council’s position for 2019/20. 
  

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. To provide Members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

with an update of the health related absence data. 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4
. 
 
 
 

The third quarter health related absence figures indicate that the overall level 
for the Authority was 2.73 days per FTE (an increase of 0.47 days from the 
same quarter in 2018/19).  62% were due to long term sickness absence with 
the remaining 38% due to short term absence.  When compared to the same 

Page 12

Agenda Item 5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

period in 2018/19, the percentage split is similar with long term absence taking 
63% of the number of FTE days lost and 37% for short term absence. 
 
The fourth quarter figures show a slight reduction compared to the same 
period last year in that 2.60 days were lost per FTE, a reduction of 0.14 days 
(2.74 days lost). 
 
Compared to the same period last year, long term absence has increased in 
the fourth quarter with 1.64 days (63%) of the total days lost (an increase of 
0.24 days compared to 2018/19). 0.97 days (37%) were lost to short term 
absence (a reduction of 0.36 days compared to 2018/19). 
 
Table 1 below shows the third and fourth quarter absence data per 
Directorate. 
 

Directorate 

Quarter 3 absence data  

(September – December 2019) 

Quarter 4 absence data 

(January – March 2020) 

Days lost 
to long 

term 
absence 

Days lost 
to short 

term 
absence 

Total 
Days 
lost 

Days 
lost 
per 
FTE 

Days lost 
to long 

term 
absence 

Days lost 
to short 

term 
absence 

Total 
Days 
lost 

Days 
lost 
per 
FTE 

Executive 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Adult Care 
Service 

464.08 304.56 768.65 2.27 405.54 444.00 849.55 2.56 

Public Health 72.00 2.00 74.00 5.21 46.00 7.00 53.00 3.27 

Children’s 
Services 

1159.52 728.57 1888.09 2.80 1226.26 738.85 1965.11 2.93 

Economy 36.46 27.94 64.40 0.83 0.00 31.62 31.62 0.39 

Neighbourhoods 1967.91 1012.54 2980.45 3.32 1798.64 818.27 2616.90 2.88 

Resources 139.00 233.57 372.57 1.48 222.00 152.07 374.07 1.49 

Total 3838.98 2309.18 6148.16 2.73 3698.44 2191.82 5890.25 2.60 

 
Schools 4694.94 3475.29 8170.23 2.42 4773.42 3084.18 7857.60 2.31 

 
The year-end absence figures indicate that the overall level of days lost for the 
Council was 9.67 days per FTE, compared to 9.86 days per FTE for 2018/19.  
Of the 9.67 days lost per FTE, 6.29 (65%) were lost to long term absence, and 
3.39 (35%) to short term absence.  This is similar to the breakdown of days 
lost in 2018/1 where 6.20 (63%) were lost to long term absence, and 3.66 
(37%) were lost to short term absence. 
 
Table 2 below shows the year-end absence data per Directorate, and the year-
end position compared to each Directorate’s target. 

 

Year-end absence data (April 2019 – March 2020) 

Directorate 
Days lost to long 

term absence 
Days lost to short 

term absence 
Total Days 

lost 
Days lost 
per FTE 

2019/20 
Target 

Executive 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 

Page 13



Adult Care 
Service 

1863.10 1293.80 3156.89 9.50 9.00 

Public Health 118.00 25.00 143.00 8.83 5.00 

Children’s 
Services 

4145.38 2336.71 6482.08 9.66 7.90 

Economy 119.84 110.89 230.73 2.82 5.00 

Neighbourhoods 7120.06 3260.35 10380.41 11.44 8.00 

Resources 848.73 631.98 1480.71 5.91 6.13 

Total 14215.09 7658.73 21873.83 9.67 8.45 

 

Schools 16928.64 11145.06 28073.70 8.26 7.00 

 
It should be noted that 75% of individuals working in schools are employed by 
the Council, and the remaining 25% are employed by the Governing Body.   
 
Based upon an analysis of the data for 2019/20, long term absence accounted 
for the majority of absences.  Stress/depression, was the top reason for long 
term absence, with operative/post operative and back/neck problems being the 
other 2 top reasons. These are the same top reasons for long term absence in 
2018/19. 
 
Short term absence accounted for 35% of absences, with colds/flu/viral 
infections being the top reason for short term absence, and 
gastric/stomach/kidney/ liver and stress/depression accounting for the other 2 
top reasons.  These were the same top 3 reasons for short term absence in 
period in 2018/19. 
 
Table 3 below provides a 4 year trend by Directorate of the days lost. 
 

 
 
This report notes that the year-end absence figures for the Council has 
improved compared to last year however stress/depression continues to be 
one of the top absence reasons.     
 
Each Directorate is committed to continue to monitor and manage absence to 
meet the challenging targets set on an annual basis.  In addition, the HR 
Service continues to provide strategic advice and support to Services including 

Adult Care
Children's
Services

Economy
Neighbourh

oods
Public
Health

Resources

2016/17 11.63 9.1 5.08 13.64 4.96 6.73

2017/18 10.97 9.5 5.85 9.5 7.05 7.13

2018/19 10.47 10.44 7.51 10.33 0.97 7.30

2019/20 9.5 9.66 2.82 11.44 8.83 5.91

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16

D
ay

s 
lo

st
 p

e
r 

FT
E

Comparison of days lost by Directorates

Page 14



attendance at Absence clinics.  Regular support is also provided to managers 
who have staff off on long term sick or persist short term absences.  The HR 
Service also continues to provide training (including e-learning and face to face 
training) and support to managers across the Authority on effective absence 
management, whilst also providing support to staff. 
 
In relation to stress/depression, employees have access to the Employee 
Assistance Programme (EAP) which is a free 24/7 confidential telephone 
advice and counselling support service covering a range of topics.   
 
The Council has a Health & Wellbeing group which has developed a 
programme of activities including but not limited to: 
 
Pre Covid-19: 

 Massage and yoga sessions 

 Mindful and sleep sessions 

 Stress management training 

 MOTs – checks of blood pressure, weight, etc 

 Book club 
 
Since lockdown: 

 A staff health & wellbeing Facebook group 

 A further book club 

 Virtual cafes 

 You’re ACE e-card 

 Advice on staying well whilst working at home 

 A film club 

 A virtual gardening club 
 
Along with these activities, there are currently 50 Workplace Wellbeing 
Champions with a role to support staff and promote and share health & 
wellbeing information.  
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
As this is part of the Council’s performance management process, there are no 
other alternatives.  
 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. The number of working days lost to absence for the period 2019/20 is a total 

of 21,873 days.  The cost of working days lost can be calculated using an 
average salary of £103 per day and equates to £2,252,919.  Any financial 
implications arising from sickness absence are reported by Directorates 
through the Revenue Finance Updates reports presented to Cabinet on a 
quarterly basis.  

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 

Page 15



6. Significant health related absence will impact on the Council`s capacity to 
deliver its corporate objectives, therefore effective management of health 
related absence is a whole organisation responsibility. 
 

Consultation 

 
7. In compiling this report, Directors and Assistant Directors have been 

advised on performance relating to their service areas. Trade Unions have 
also been provided with information. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. There are no background 
papers to this report. 

N/A 

 

For Further Information Contact: Rosemary Barker 
rosemary.barker@rochdale.gov.uk 
01706 926245 

 

Page 16

mailto:rosemary.barker@rochdale.gov.uk


Appendix One - Covid-19 Related Absences 

On 23rd March 2020 the Prime Minister announced lockdown in response to the growing coronavirus 

pandemic.  Soon after this date the Council established specific Covid-19 absence reasons on its HR 

& Payroll system and recording of such absences commenced. 

In response to a request from Unison (and in line with other GM Authorities) it was agreed that any 

absence relating to Covid-19 would not be included in sickness monitoring.  Also, following NJC 

guidance, the same absences would also be excluded from sick pay arrangements meaning that an 

employee would continue to receive normal contractual pay whilst absent from work due to Covid-

19.  

The categories of absences are: 

 Higher Risk – employees who received the letter from the NHS confirming they are clinically 

extremely vulnerable and must follow shielding guidance. 

 Self-isolation – employees who were required to self-isolate in line with government 

guidance or at the instruction of NHS Test & Trace. 

 Sickness (Medically Confirmed) – employees who were sick with a confirmed diagnosis of 

Covid-19 following testing. 

 Sickness (Self Diagnosis) – employees who were sick with symptoms of Covid-19 and unable 

to work but had not been tested. 

Below are a number of graphs summarising recorded Covid-19 related absences: 

 

The Directorates with the highest numbers of absences are those providing critical frontline services 

during the pandemic.  Resources Directorate has the highest % of staff working from home. 

7 0 12
55

2

241

50

1
22

117

12

640

2 1 5 3 1 1027
1 6

56

7
46

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Children's Services Economy Integrated
Commissioning

Neighbourhoods Resources Schools

Covid-19 Related Absences
Directorate Breakdown

Higher Risk Self-isolating Sickness (Medically Confirmed) Sickness (Self Diagnosis)

Page 17



 

As can be seen self-isolation has been the main reason for staff absences relating to Covid-19.  This 

equates to 11.81% of staff (including schools) with 0.31% of staff testing positive (sickness (medically 

confirmed)) of the coronavirus.  4.48% of staff were in the higher risk category meaning that they 

were required to follow shielding guidance which paused as from 1 August. 

 

Throughout this period of the pandemic the Council has provided support and guidance to staff, 

managers and schools, not only on the practicalities of responding to the coronavirus but also in 

terms on managing staff health and wellbeing.  This has included: 

 Excluding Covid-19 absences in sickness monitoring and sick pay arrangements; 

 Facebook page for Council & CCG staff; 

 Virtual café; 

 Staff chatters; 

 Guidance for staff and managers in relation to working from home; 

Higher Risk, 317

Self-isolating, 842

Sickness (Medically 
Confirmed), 22

Sickness (Self 
Diagnosis), 143

Covid-19 Related Absences
Totals

2

1055

132

36 56
34 7

20

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

February March April May June July August September

Covid-19 Related Absences
Monthly Totals

Page 18



 Weekly HR guidance and FAQs; 

 Manager’s Pack including Individual Wellbeing Risk Assessment; 

 “You’re ACE” e-cards. 

With effect from 1 September we have been welcoming more office-based staff back into the 

workplace in a gradual way with a view to having populated 50% capacity by the end of the month.  

There will be variations on how different teams operate dependent on service requirements and the 

individual wellbeing risk assessments of staff.  As a result some staff may continue to work from 

home, some will return to the workplace and some are likely to do a mixture of the two. 

 

Page 19



1 | P a g e  
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

EMPLOYMENT EQUALITY  

REPORT 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20

Agenda Item 6



2 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

CONTENTS 

 

 

 Page 

Introduction 3 

Key Workforce data 

- Race 

- Disability 

- Gender 

- Age 

- Other protected characteristic groups 

 

4 

5 

6 

7 

7 

Equality Monitoring Data 

- Table 1:  Rochdale Borough Council Workforce 

- Table 2:  Recruitment 

- Table 3:  Starters and leavers 

- Table 4:  Maternity data 

- Table 5:  Discipline and Grievance 

 

8 

9 - 10 

11 

11 

11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



3 | P a g e  
 

INTRODUCTION  

Rochdale Borough Council is seeking to ensure the composition of its workforce reflects the diverse local 

community, and to offer equality of opportunity in employment. The Council is compliant with the 

requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty to publish equality information of the workforce and this 

report illustrates our progress.   

This report provides information for the financial year ending on 31st March 2020 and aims to demonstrate 

the progress and achievements in increasing the composition over time to show how the workforce 

diversity has changed, and how this compares to the demographic of Rochdale Borough (based on the 

2011 census data).  All workforce data reported is based on figures excluding schools. 

The Council has established an Equality and Diversity Steering Group to support its commitment to 

integrate equality, diversity and inclusion throughout its services.  A key component of the Equality Strategy 

will be equality, diversity and inclusion in employment which will look to address those areas where the 

Council is under-represented when compared to the local population. 

On a local level the Council has undertaken a number of BAME Listening Events to better understand 

workplace race inequalities.  Feedback from these events will inform a SMART action plan. 

A review of the Council’s Recruitment & Selection Framework is underway with one of the key objectives 

being to better embed equality, diversity and inclusion.  This in turn should facilitate an improvement with 

the workforce reflecting the make-up of the community of Rochdale Borough.  To compliment this work, two 

Council staff are participating on the GM Race Equality Change Agents Program. 

A Member led task and finish equalities group has been established and its remit is to take forward the 

workforce equality objective from the Equality Strategy. 

At a regional level Greater Manchester Workforce Race key data indicator returns for public sector 

organisations.  The six indicators include: 

1. Percentage of BAME staff at each pay level of the organisation mapped against overall staff in 

organisation (including Executive Board Members). 

2. Likelihood of BAME staff shortlisted and appointed after shortlisting compared with white staff  

3. Measurement of the ethnicity pay gap (to the same standard at the EPG).   

4. Likelihood of BAME staff applications for formal flexible working being successful compared with 

White staff.   

5. Likelihood of BAME staff being investigated through the formal disciplinary process compared to 

White Staff. 

6. Likelihood of BAME staff being dismissed after entering formal disciplinary process compared to 

White staff. 

The outcomes of these indicators will also inform the SMART action plan previously mentioned. 

  

Page 22



4 | P a g e  
 

RACE 

At the end of March 2020, 11.49% of Council employees were from a Black or Minority Ethnic (BME) 

background and 85.49% of the workforce were White British.  The rate for employees from a BME 

background has been steadily increasing year on year over the last 8 years, with 8.38% of staff being from 

a BME background in 2013, to 11.49% by March 2020.  Only 3.02% of the Council workforce had not 

declared their ethnic origin.   

 

 

The table below provides details of the ethnicity profiles of the local population of Rochdale, compared to 

the workforce. 

Ethnic 
Origin 

Local 
Population 

Rochdale workforce 

March 
2020 Representative of local population 

BME 18.2% 11.49%  Under represented in workforce 

White 
British 81.8% 85.49%  Over represented in workforce 

Unknown 0.00% 3.02%  Over represented in workforce 

3%

12%

85%

Ethnicity as at 31.03.20

Ethnicity unknown

Ethnic minority staff
numbers

White British

11.49%11.09%10.91%
10.15%

10.54%
9.86%

8.64%8.38%

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

12.00%

14.00%

31.03.2031.03.1931.03.1831.03.1731.03.1631.03.1531.03.1431.03.13

% Ethnic Minority Staff

Page 23



5 | P a g e  
 

DISABILITY 

At the end of March 2020, 4.01% of Council employees had declared a disability, and 90.59% had declared 

that they did not have a disability.  The number of employees who have declared a disability has also 

increased from 3.61% in 2013 to 4.01% in 2020.  There were only 5.40% of the workforce for whom the 

disability status was unknown.  

The 2011 census found that 21% of the populate of Rochdale Borough described themselves as having a 

disability, or a long term life limiting illness, of which 11.3% are of working age adults, therefore we are 

considerably under-represented in terms of disabled employees.   

 

 

 

  

4%
5%

91%

Disability as at 31.03.20

Disability declared

Disability unknown

Not disabled

4.01%
4.18%4.27%

4.68%

4.25%

3.81%
3.61%3.61%

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

5.00%

31.03.2031.03.1931.03.1831.03.1731.03.1631.03.1531.03.1431.03.13

% Disabled staff

Page 24



6 | P a g e  
 

GENDER  

At the end of March 2020, the composition of the Council workforce was 69.35% female and 30.65% were 

male employees.  This has remained static over the last 8 years. The Borough’s gender make up is 51% 

female, therefore we are over-represented in terms of female employees.  

 

 

 

 

  

69%

31%

Gender as at 31.03.20

Women

Male

69%

68%

70%70%

70%

70%70%

69%

67%

68%

68%

69%

69%

70%

70%

71%

31.03.2031.03.1931.03.1831.03.1731.03.1631.03.1531.03.1431.03.13

% Female employees

Page 25



7 | P a g e  
 

AGE  

The composition of the workforce in terms of age reflects an ageing workforce, as 40.37% of the workforce 

are over the age of 44, 35.74% are within the age band 25 to 44 years and there are only 4.63% of the 

workforce who are under the age of 25.  The smallest groups within the workforce are under 20 year olds 

(0.84%) and 65 years plus (2.95%).   

 

The table below provides a comparison of the local working age population of Rochdale to the workforce. 

Age Groups Local 
Population 

Rochdale workforce 

March 
2020 Representative of local population 

Under 20 9.3% 0.84%  Under represented in workforce 

20 to 24 9.0% 3.79%  Under represented in workforce 

25 to 29 9.1% 6.08%  Under represented in workforce 

30 to 44 27.6% 29.66%  Over represented in workforce 

45 to 59 26.4% 45.82%  Over represented in workforce 

60 to 64 8.0% 10.86%  Over represented in workforce 

65 and over 10.7% 2.95% 
 

Under represented in workforce 
 

OTHER PROTECTED CHARACTERISTIC GROUPS 

The Council does not currently maintain records of staff who have declared the following status and it is 

currently not a mandatory requirement for employees to declare; 

 Gender Identity  

 Sexual Orientation  

 Religion or Belief 

 Caring responsibilities 

 Marriage and Civil Partnership 

1% 4%

6%

29%

46%

11%

3%

Age Profile as at 31.03.20

Under 20

20 - 24

25 - 29

30 - 44

45 - 59

60 - 64

65 & over

Page 26



8 | P a g e  
 

EQUALITY MONITORING DATA  

The following data has been taken from the Council’s HR systems as at the end of March 2020. It is split 

into the following tables:- 

Table 1  Rochdale Council Workforce   

Table 2  Recruitment  

Table 3  Starters and Leavers 

Table 4  Maternity data 

Table 5  Grievance and Disciplinary  

 

Table 1:  RBC Council Workforce   

 
 

 
  

1. Ethnicity

 FTE Headcount Ethnic origin known % Ethnic minority staff Number of top earners % Ethnic Minority top 

earners

All employees 2253 2715 96.97% 11.49% 137 1.45%

2. Disability

Disability status 

known

% Disabled staff Number of top 

earners

% of disabled top earners

All employees 2568 4.01% 137 0.72%

3. Gender

Headcount % Women Number of top 

earners

% of women top earners

All employees 2715 69.35% 137 61.31%

4. Age Profile - All staff

Under 20 20 - 24 25 - 29 30 - 44 45 - 59 60 - 64 Over 65

All employees 0.84% 3.79% 6.08% 29.66% 45.82% 10.86% 2.95%

5. Age Profile by Gender

Under 20 20 - 24 25 - 29 30 - 44 45 - 59 60 - 64 Over 65 Total

Male 0.33% 1.39% 1.73% 8.59% 13.84% 3.83% 0.93% 30.64%

Female 0.52% 2.39% 4.35% 21.06% 31.98% 7.04% 2.02% 69.36%

6. Age Profile by Ethnicity

Under 20 20 - 24 25 - 29 30 - 44 45 - 59 60 - 64 Over 65 Total

BME 0.03% 0.81% 1.25% 5.30% 3.28% 0.63% 0.19% 11.49%

White British 0.63% 2.84% 4.56% 23.25% 40.84% 9.87% 2.50% 85.49%

Unknown 0.18% 0.08% 0.23% 0.69% 1.40% 0.29% 0.15% 3.02%

7. Age Profile by Disability

Under 20 20 - 24 25 - 29 30 - 44 45 - 59 60 - 64 Over 65 Total

Disabled 0.00% 0.07% 0.18% 0.81% 2.18% 0.48% 0.07% 3.79%

Non-disabled 0.66% 3.53% 5.69% 27.57% 42.51% 9.84% 2.77% 92.57%

Not declared 0.18% 0.11% 0.14% 1.28% 1.58% 0.44% 0.07% 3.64%

8. Ethnicity by Employee status

Ethnic origin 

known

% Ethnic minority 

staff

Number of top 

earners

% Ethnic Minority top earners

Part time 994 4.53% 13 0.00%

Full time 1639 6.96% 124 1.45%

9. Disability by Employee status

Disability status 

known

% Disabled staff Number of top 

earners

% of disabled top earners

Part time 971 1.14% 13 0.00%

Full time 1597 2.65% 124 0.80%

10. Gender by Employee status

Headcount % Women Number of top 

earners

% of women top earners

Part time 891 32.81% 13 9.48%

Full time 992 36.54% 14 51.82%

11. Age Profile by Employee status

Under 20 20 - 24 25 - 29 30 - 44 45 - 59 60 - 64 Over 65 Total

Part time 0.07% 0.92% 1.29% 10.01% 17.18% 6.00% 2.22% 37.69%

Full time 0.77% 2.87% 4.78% 19.63% 28.67% 4.86% 0.73% 62.31%

Page 27



9 | P a g e  
 

Table 2: Recruitment 
  
Success Rate of Applicants 01.4.2019 – 31.3.2020 - Data relating to Gender, Age, Disability and 
Ethnic Origin 
 
Applications are received and processed for Council jobs regardless of whether an applicant declares their 
personal information relating to gender, age, disability or ethnic origin and this is therefore not compulsory 
information. The following tables do however report where applicants have provided this information.  
Where an applicant has not declared this has been recorded as blank or ‘prefers not to state’. The Council 
received a total of 2458 job applications in the period 2019/20. 
 
Gender 
 
As shown in the table below, of the total number of 2458 job applications received, there were a higher 
proportion of females who applied for jobs, in that 65.34% were from females and 34.26% from males.  We 
do not have gender data for 0.41% of the applicants as they preferred not to declare their gender. 
 
Of those who applied for jobs the number of males and females who were successfully appointed 
comprised of 74.90% female and 25.10% males.  
 

 
 
Age  
 
Of the 2458 job applications received, 35.15% of applicants had not declared information relating to their 
age.  Of the applicants who had provided this information, the majority number of applicants (25.55%) were 
aged between 40-64. 25.26% were aged 26-39 and 13.71% were aged 16-25 with 0.33% aged between 
65-74.  The data shows that of the applicants who were successfully appointed to posts in the Council the 
majority were in the 26-39 and 46-64 age groups. 
 

 
 
Disability  
 
The number of applicants declaring a disability was 4.07% and 91.38% stated they were not disabled. The 
proportion of disabled applicants who were offered a position was consistent at 4.94%.  
 

 
 
 

Page 28



10 | P a g e  
 

Race 
 
The highest proportion of applicants was from a White British background at 66.52 %. The highest 
proportion of appointees was from a White British background at 80.23%. There were 18.76% Asian or 
Asian British applicants of whom 9.51% were appointed and 5.25% Black or Black British applicants of 
whom 4.18% were appointed. 
 

 
 

  

Page 29



11 | P a g e  
 

Table 3:  Starters and Leavers 

Equality monitoring data relating to new starters (appointed staff) is included within the section Table 2: 

Recruitment.  With regards to leavers, there were 323 employees who exited the organisation between 1st 

April 2019 – 31st March 2020.  The following information has been gathered in relation to leavers: 

 12.29% were from a black or minority ethnic background 

 8% had declared a disability 

 66% were women 

 The age bands of leavers were as follows: 

o 16 – 24: 10.52% 

o 25 – 34: 17.02% 

o 35 – 44: 17.02% 

o 45 – 54: 16.73% 

o 55 – 64: 28.20% 

o Over 65: 9.91% 

The table below details of the reasons provided for leaving. 

Reason for leaving % of leavers 

Died in Service 1.24% 

Dismissal 4.65% 

End of Temporary Contract 6.82% 

Resignation 54.48% 

Retirement - Ill Health 1.54% 

Tupe Transfer Out 6.82% 

Redundancy - No pension 3.40% 

Redundancy - With pension 6.50% 

Retirement 14.55% 

 

Table 4:  Maternity data 

During the financial year 2019/20, 2.39% of Council employees took a period of maternity leave.  This is 

slightly higher than last year, when 2.2% took maternity leave. 

Table 5:  Breakdown of Employee Relations cases by Gender, Ethnicity and Disability for 2019/20 

For the reporting period of 1st April 2019 – 31st March 2020, there were 20 Grievance and Disciplinary 

cases.  Of these 70% were female, 15% were of a BME background, 5% had a disability and 35% were 

classed as part time workers. 

Page 30



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOURCES 

Directorate Plan 2020/2021 P
age 31

A
genda Item

 7



 

Introduction 

This directorate plan outlines the action that Resources Directorate will take over the coming year, to support our long term vision, 

priorities and outcomes. Our outcomes will be achieved through realisation of our indicators of success. Our ways of working and values 

and behaviours will underpin the action that we take.

 
 
Our vision: To make our borough a great place to grow up, get on and live well 
 
Our priorities: Prosperous people and places 
 
Our outcomes: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 32



 

Indicators of success: Prosperous people 

People get a good start People are protected People are resilient People are healthy People fulfil their 
potential 

More mothers 
breastfeeding for longer 
 
Fewer mothers smoking 
in pregnancy 
 
More children school 
ready 
 
All pupils achieving at all 
key stages 
 
More young people 
participating in 
apprenticeships and 
learning 
 

Reduced risk of 
deliberate harm, 
accidental injury and 
neglect for both children 
and adults 
 
Reduced rates of children 
and adults needing 
protection and care  
 
Fewer children and 
young people entering 
the youth justice system 
 
More people with Special 
Educational Needs and 
Disabilities supported to 
know their rights and  
receiving joined up 
support  
 
More carers receiving 
appropriate support 
 
More families staying 
together                                
through early intervention 

Children and young people 
have high self-esteem and 
are satisfied with their life, 
including being free from 
bullying at school 
 
Fewer people have 
common and severe 
mental health disorders 
 
People have good levels of 
social contact and are not 
lonely or isolated, including 
adult care users, older 
people and carers 
 
Fewer households living in 
fuel poverty 
 
Fewer people living in 
deprivation, suffering the 
impact of Welfare Reform 
or living in poverty in later 
life 
 
More households 
prevented from becoming 
homeless 
 

More people are 
physically active including 
the over 50’s 
 
More people are a 
healthy weight 
 
Reduced harm from 
drugs, alcohol and 
smoking 
 
Fewer people dying early 
from diseases 
  
More children have good 
oral health 
 
Fewer older people 
suffering from falls 
 
Fewer people 
experiencing lengthy 
hospital stays through 
reablement and care at 
home 

People have access to 
good or outstanding 
places of learning 
 
People have higher 
levels of qualifications 
and skills, including 
being able to access 
and use technology 
 
More people have 
higher earnings 
 
More Rochdale 
employees receiving the 
living wage, getting a 
fair day’s pay for a fair 
day’s work  
 
More people in good 
employment or 
engaging in meaningful 
activity during the 
working day 
 

 

 

 

P
age 33



 

Indictors of success: Prosperous places 

Place is age friendly Place is inclusive Place is welcoming Place provides 
opportunities 

Place support 
sustainable growth 

Younger and older 
people engaging in   
intergenerational 
activities 
 
More people aged 50-64 
in employment, training 
or volunteering 
 
More older people 
participating in 
community activities  
 
People supported to live 
well with dementia 
 
People have access to 
quality home care,         
residential and nursing 
care services 
 
 
 
 
 

People come together 
through creative  and 
cultural opportunities  
 
More people engaging in 
volunteering, acts of 
kindness and doing things 
for each other 
 
Fewer people experiencing 
discrimination and greater 
consideration of the needs 
of people who are 
disadvantaged or suffer 
inequality 
 
More people living in 
harmony together, 
whatever their background, 
religion or culture  
 
More people have their 
voice heard through 
engagement and 
consultation, especially 
young people 

More and a better mix of 
affordable and higher 
value homes, including 
land being made available 
to support development 
 
Sustainable homes that 
have age and 
environmentally friendly 
features 
 
More empty homes being 
brought back into use and 
an improved private rented 
sector 
 
Air and land free from 
pollution and infrastructure 
that protects against 
climate change by using        
natural/renewable sources 
 
Accessible, quality 
highways and transport 
options, including cycling 
and walking 
 
Reduced crime and 
antisocial behaviour 

More jobs created and 
good quality 
apprenticeships 
 
Higher proportion of 
skilled work in the labour 
market 
 
Town centres offer a 
balance of employment, 
commercial, leisure, 
community, housing,          
healthcare and 
educational use 
 
More businesses 
relocating, starting up or 
expanding in the borough 
 
More land and sites for 
employment 

Maximised income 
through investment, 
sponsorship, funding 
and rates and through 
better use of the local 
environment, heritage 
and buildings 
 
People spending money 
on local goods and 
services to keep more of 
the Rochdale pound in 
Rochdale 
 
Reduced demand on 
health and care services 
(A&E, hospitals, GP’s) 
 
Healthy, stable and 
quality workforces, 
particularly in key 
sectors (care, social 
work etc.) 
 
Improved availability 
and reliability of online 
access including better 
internet speeds and 
public wifi 
 
Service delivery models 
making use of         
technology and data 

P
age 34



 

Values and behaviours 

The values and behaviours support the Council’s vision and seek to inspire employees’ best efforts and help in building a positive culture.  

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I seek out opportunities to 
network with and learn from 

others and to put that 
learning or new ways of 

working into practice

I work closely with residents 
and partners to shape 

outcomes and design and 
deliver services

I recognise that I am 
spending public money and 

always look for the most 
efficient and effective way of 

doing that

I welcome opportunities to do 
things differently and 

respond positively to change 
and feedback

I am honest in all of my 
interactions with others and 

realistic about what is 
practical and affordable

I don’t shy away from difficult 
conversations

I am always positive when 
talking about the borough 

and the work we do 

I seek out opportunities to 
talk about our achievements

I congratulate others when 
things have gone well

I understand how my own 
positive behaviour reflects 

positively on the reputation of 
the borough 

I have positive and respectful 
relationships with my 

colleagues, residents and 
partners regardless of their 

background, social identity or 
circumstances

I avoid making assumptions 
about people and ensure I 
listen to their experiences 

and perspective before 
making a decision or taking 

action

I always try to do things with 
people rather than to them

I understand that one size 
does not always fit all and 

that it is fair to take account 
of people’s differences in my 

work

I challenge inappropriate 
behaviour or language

Pioneering & Open in our approach: We are ambitious for the people and place of Rochdale and will work collaboratively with local 
people and partners, building relationships based on respect and openness, to deliver the best possible outcomes 
 
Proud of the difference we make: We will celebrate and share our achievements and act as Ambassadors for the borough of Rochdale 
 
Passionate about the diversity of the borough: We love the diversity within our workforce and local communities and will strive for 
excellence in meeting different needs and aspirations 

P
age 35



 

Our ways of working 

The Council is facing significant financial challenges, which means that we have reduced capacity to deliver services. We will adopt working 

practices that will improve our capacity to deliver, facilitate ongoing service delivery and support us in achieving our outcomes. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 36



 

Directorate Structure 

The management structure of the directorate is detailed below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Director of Resources

Neil Thornton

Assistant Director Legal 
Governance & Workforce 

(Monitoring Officer) 

David Wilcock

Chief Finance Officer

(S151 Officer)

Julie Murphy

Strategic Lead: 
Transformation & Reform

Rebecca Huddleston

P
age 37



 

Directorate functions and services 

The Directorate has responsibility for a range of service areas and activities. 

Service Head of Service 

Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Corporate Services) Sam Smith 

Finance Support Services Stuart Smith 

Commercial, Economy and Resources Michelle Ashworth 

Internal Audit, Risk, Insurance & Counter Fraud Ian Corbridge 

Revenues & Benefits Carolyn Goddard 

Workforce & Organisational Development Rosemary Barker  

Legal Services David Wilcock 

Governance & Committee Services Michael Garraway (Interim) 

 

Lead Cabinet Members 

Cabinet members with relevant portfolio holder responsibilities oversee Council Directorates 

 Councillor Allen Brett –  Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance 

 Councillor Faisal Rana – Assistant Cabinet Member for Finance 

Portfolio Holder Area:  Covering Finance, Revenues & Benefits, Insurance and Risk. 

 Councillor Daalat Ali – Cabinet Member for Resources 

 Councillor John Hartley – Assistant Cabinet Member for Resources 

Portfolio Holder Area:  Covering ICT, Customer Access, Policy & Performance, Public Service Reform, STAR Procurement, Legal, 
Governance, HR, Organisational Development and Corporate Health & Safety 

 

P
age 38



 

Directorate Responsibilities 

The directorate has the following responsibilities: 

 Corporate Finance 

 Finance Support Services 

 Treasury Management 

 Commercial Financial Advice 

 Internal Audit, Counter Fraud, Insurance and Risk 

 Schools Traded Finance Service 

 Creditors, Debtors, invoice processing 

 Financial Systems 

 Council Tax and Business Rates 

 Benefits and Assessments 

 Corporate Debt 

 STAR Client (Procurement) 

 Legal Services 

 Manchester Shared Legal Service Client 

 Democracy Services 

 Elections 

 Civics 

 HR Business Partner and HR Advisory Service 

 Payroll, Pensions and Operational HR 

 Organisational Development 

 Corporate Health and Safety 

 Transformation and Reform 

The Directorate also has links with the Integrated Finance Team 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 39



 

 

Key Documents 

The directorate works in accordance with the following strategies and plans: 

 

 Corporate Plan 2019 - 2022 

 Locality Plan 

 Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 Treasury management Strategy 

 Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy 

Plus, as support services, supporting Directorates in delivery activity which is aligned to specific Directorate strategies and plans 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 40



Directorate Actions 

The table outlines the action that will be taken to support transformation, improvement and direction of travel. It highlights the work that will be undertaken to deliver on the action. Business as usual activities 

are not included.  

 

Ref Directorate Action 
Action 
owner 

Action 
completion date 

Work requirements Work due date Work owner 
Outcome that this 

action links to 
Indicators of success that 
this work contributes to 

R20001 Implementation of Canvass 
Reform 

Clare Poole December 2020 Comprehensive data matching of all electoral 
records against DWP data. 
 
Conduct of annual electoral canvass in 
accordance with new legal guidelines 
 
Review of existing approach to canvass 
 
Development and implementation of new 
canvass procedure 
 
Review of existing office processes for electoral 
registration 
 
Development and implementation of new office 
procedures for maintenance of electoral register 
 

July 2020 
 
 
 
December 2020 
 
June 2020 
 
 
August 2020 
 
June 2020 
 
 
 
July 2020 

Clare Poole Place is inclusive Successful implementation of 
canvass reform within new 
statutory guidelines 

R20002 Contribution to Local 
Government Boundary 
Commission for England 
Electoral Review 
 

Clare Poole April 2021 Contribution to the council submission to the 
LGBCE Boundary Review. 
 
LGBCE consider recommendations in Council 
size report and report back 
 
Officer group to prepare maps and 
documentation for Member Steering Group to 
propose new ward boundaries 
 
 
Engagement with elected members and other 
stakeholders regarding the relocation of ward 
boundaries 
 
Council report submission sign off at full Council 
 
Submission of report to LGBCE 
 
Final recommendations from LGBCE on new 
ward boundaries 
 
Implementation of new ward boundaries as 
recommended by the LGBCE and amendments 
to the electoral registers  
 

27 April 2020 
 
 
May 2020 
 
 
May 2020 
 
 
 
 
TBC 
 
 
 
TBC 
 
TBC 
 
TBC 
 
 
TBC 
 

Clare Poole  
 

That the electoral review is 
carried out according to 
LGBCE regulations and 
revisions to electoral wards are 
applied accurately 

R20003 To strengthen governance 
arrangements across the 
organisation at service level 

Michael 
Garraway 

March 2021 Update Forward Plan and Directorate Planning 
 
Constitutional scheme of delegation is updated 
to meet the needs of the organisation  
 
Service based schemes of delegation reviewed 
with Officer nominations 
 
Improvement of senior officers engagement 
governance activities  
 

August 2020 
 
November 2020 
 
 
December 2020 
 
 
March 2021 

Committee 
Services 

 
 

Decision making workflows are 
clear, easy to understand and 
followed by all Officers and 
enable better public 
engagement.  

P
age 41



Ref Directorate Action 
Action 
owner 

Action 
completion date 

Work requirements Work due date Work owner 
Outcome that this 

action links to 
Indicators of success that 
this work contributes to 

R20004 Health and Social Care - 
Review and evaluation of 
decision making structure 
for Joint Health 
Arrangements 

Michael 
Garraway 

April 2021 Align comparative decision making timelines 
with CCG 
 
Provide training on the Council’s decision 
making process and structures 
 
Review effectiveness of ICB agenda planning. 
 

December 2020 Committee 
Services 
 

 That governance structures 
support partners ambitions for 
delivery 

R20005 Refresh and support the 
Member Development 
Programme 

Michael 
Garraway 

April 2021 Identify best practice 
 
Set up a Member led task and finish group  
 
Report to Members on options via Overview & 
Scrutiny report to Cabinet 
 

October 2020 Committee 
Services 

 Supporting political leadership 
development to strengthen 
local accountability, monitor 
performance and drive 
improvement 

R20006 Develop the use of the 
iTrent HR system to 
maximise customer 
experience and enhance 
organisational performance 
including integration with 
financial system    

Rosemary 
Barker/Julie 
Murphy 

March 2021 Scope implementation of new system 
 
Manage implementation of new system 
 
Lead integration with Civica 
 

June 2020 
 
December 2020 
 
March 2021 

Ann 
Ridyard/Stuart 
Smith? 

All 
 

Better alignment of 
establishments and budgets 
between iTrent and Civica 
 
Increased efficiency 
 
Improved customer experience 

R20007 Develop and deliver the 
Council’s Organisational 
Development plan to 
maximise potential and 
performance of workforce  

Rosemary 
Barker 

March 2021 Develop leadership programmes to enable 
virtual delivery 
 
Develop staff engagement programme to enable 
virtual delivery 
 
Implement new approach to PDR and talent 
management  

 Develop virtual delivery programme for 
managers with talent tool (via Delve) 

 Programme delivery on a directorate by 
directorate basis tailored to service 
requirements commencing with Resources 
directorate 

 Develop performance management models to 
support remote working 

 
In conjunction with Public Health deliver 
workforce wellbeing plan and develop strategies 
to address issues presented by the ‘new normal’  
 
Adapt and develop robust induction processes 
in light of the requirements of the ‘new normal’ 
 
Build on the data sets established during Covid 
to further develop workforce planning 
(succession and emerging roles) and 
disseminate across the organisation 
 

March 2021 
 
 
 
 
 

Martin Plant All 
 

All 

R20008 Develop and deliver 
Locality Workforce Strategy 
to support health and care 
integration and wider Public 
Sector Reform  

Rosemary 
Barker 

March 2021 Review and develop post covid strategy with 
ICD SMT to develop / address: 
 

 System Leadership 

 Culture change 

 Organisational change (e.g. neighbourhood 
working) 

 Integration of CCG / Development of workforce 
aspects of ICD and LCO 

March 2021 Business 
Partners  

 
 

 

P
age 42



Ref Directorate Action Action owner 
Action 
completion date 

Work requirements Work due date Work owner 
Outcome that this 
action links to 

Indicators of success that 
this work contributes to 

R20009 Support the development 
and delivery of the 5 year 
Children’s Strategy in 
conjunction with Finance  

Rosemary 
Barker/ Stuart 
Smith 

March 2021 Support recruitment and retention plan in 
conjunction with service 
 
Work with service to reduce reliance on agency 
workers   
 
To support the service in implementation of the 
financial strategy and evaluating progress. 
 
Understand the impact of demand pressures on 
Legal Costs over the 5 year strategy period. 

March 2021  Ann Harrison/ 
Finance BP 
 
 
 
 
Tammy 
Faulkner 
 
 
Joanne 
Dignum 

People Get a Good 
Start  
 

All 

R20010 To undertake a full service 
review of  council priorities 
to ensure that legal services 
has the capacity and skill 
set to meet the Council’s 
priorities as set out in the 
Corporate Plan. 
 

Saiqa 
Hussain/Diane 
Lund 

31/03/2021 Evaluate the Corporate Plan, establish 
directorate priorities, consider skill set of staff 
currently within legal services in order to 
understand the impact on corporate demand 
and legal services staff  

 December 2020 Saiqa Hussain 
/Diane Lund 

 
 

Increased efficiency. 
 
Meeting Corporate priorities.   

R20011 To undertake a review of 
Lexcel best practice to 
ensure higher standards of 
delivery of legal services 
with a view to obtaining 
accreditation in 2021/22. 
 

Saiqa Hussain 
/Diane Lund 

31/03/2021 Undertake review of practice management 
standards and processes. 
 
 

 December 2020 Terry 
Moore/Zulficar 
Ali/Claire 
Farrimond / 
Davina Tickner 
 

 
 

Increased efficiency. 
 
Mitigating risks. 

R20012 To introduce a new case 
management system to 
streamline processes and 
increase productivity and 
efficiency. 
 

Saiqa Hussain 
/Diane Lund 

March 2021 Undertake a review of all case types, work 
types, work-flows, templates and time recording.   

 December 2020 Pauline 
Tarrant / Terry 
Moore / Julie 
Sherratt / 
Zulficar Ali / 
Anne Yip-
Semourson 
and Peter 
Newbould 

 Increased efficiency and 
productivity. 
 
Increase income generation.   

R20013 Review of existing shared 
services arrangements and 
identify and progress any 
opportunities for new 
shared services 

Rebecca 
Huddleston 

March 2021 Secure LGA funding to support the work 
 
Review existing shared services arrangements 
 
Develop plans for a shared Audit service with 
Tameside Council 
 
Identify new opportunities for sharing services – 
seek approval and develop plans to implement 
 

June 2020 
 
August 2020 
 
December 2020 
 
 
March  2021 
 
 
 

R Kilvington 
 
 
R Huddleston 
 
 
J Murphy 
 
 
 
R Huddleston 

People are resilient The review and any 
subsequent recommendations 
for change will help us to 
ensure that existing shared 
services are value for money 
and the most effective delivery 
model. 
 
Any new opportunities will be 
progressed should a clear 
case be made to improve the 
service delivery and value for 
money of the service. 

R20014 Development of the public 
service reform steering 
group and strategic place 
board to effectively drive 
system wide public service 
reform in Rochdale and 
build on what has been 
achieved through the 
response to Covid-19 
 
 

Rebecca 
Huddleston 

March 2021 Development of a work plan for the PSR 
steering group to tackle common issues and 
barriers to further reforming public services 
across Rochdale.  
 
Carry out a peer review of PSR in Rochdale 

July 2020 
 
 
 
 
November 2020 

R Huddleston / 
H Chicot 
 
 
 
R Huddleston / 
H Chicot 

People are protected  

P
age 43



Ref Directorate Action Action owner 
Action 
completion date 

Work requirements Work due date Work owner 
Outcome that this 
action links to 

Indicators of success that 
this work contributes to 

R20015 Implementation of hand 
held technology in 
Children’s services 

Rebecca 
Huddleston 

March 2021 Review of best practice 
 
Development of requirements 
 
Develop and seek approval for business case 
and funding 
 
Procurement of ICT solution (hardware and 
software if needed) 
 
Implementation 

June 2020 
 
July 2020 
 
August 2020 
 
 
 
December 2020 
 
January 2021 
onwards 

R Huddleston / 
J Hasall / ICT  

People are protected Improved staff retention due to 
improved tools to support more 
efficient and better ways of 
working. 
 
Support the recruitment of 
children’s social workers due 
to improved tools to support 
more efficient working. 
 
Efficiency savings and/or 
increase in productivity. 

R20016 Delivery of the Council’s 
Customer Transformation 
Programme 

Rebecca 
Huddleston 

31/03/2021 + 
beyond 

Key milestones and dates to be updated when 
the roadmap plan is complete 
 
e-Forms implemented 
 
New website implemented 
 
Asset mgmt. system 
 
New CRM 
 
Customer access strategy developed and 
approved 
 

 
 
 
Sept 2020 
 
Oct 2020 
 
TBC 
 
TBC 
 
August 2020 

 
 
 
M Hobson 
 
R Riley  
 
M Hobson 
 
M Hobson 
 
R Huddleston 

Place supports 
sustainable growth 
 
People are resilient 

Improved availability and 
reliability of online access 
including better internet 
speeds and public wifi 
 
Service delivery models 
making use of technology and 
data 

R20017 Progress opportunities to 
improve service delivery 
and deliver recurrent 
savings through contract 
renewals 

Rebecca 
Huddleston 
/Stuart Smith 

31/03/2021 + 
beyond 

Link 4 Life/Hollingworth Lake? 
 
Highway contract renewal 
Carry out options appraisal and soft market 
testing and present findings and 
recommendations to Members 
 
Prepare procurement specification and 
documentation 
 
Procurement process 
 
 
New contract in place 

? 
 
 
July 2020 
 
 
 
December 2020 
 
 
January 2021 – 
December 2021 
 
1 April 2022 

R Kilvington  
 
 
R Huddleston / 
A Storey 
 
 
R Huddleston / 
A Storey 
 
A Storey / D 
Bowler 
 
D Bowler 

Place is inclusive 
 
 
 
 
 
Place is welcoming 

People come together through 
creative  and cultural 
opportunities  
 
 
Accessible, quality highways 
and transport options, 
including cycling and walking 
 

R20018 Development of a Digital 
Strategy 

Rebeca 
Huddleston / J 
Rooney 

01/10/2020 Consult with residents and businesses  
 
 
Establish stakeholder steering group 
 
Finalise strategy including delivery plan 
 
Approval and launch 
 
 

July 2020 
 
 
 
September 2020 
 
October 2020 
 
 
November 2020 

R Huddleston / 
H Chicot / C 
Hopkins 
 
R Huddleston 
 
R Huddleston 
 
 
R Huddleston / 
R Riley 

Place support 
sustainable growth 

Improved availability and 
reliability of online access 
including better internet 
speeds and public wifi 
 
Service delivery models 
making use of technology and 
data 

R20019 Development and approval 
of a corporate approach to 
sponsorship 

R Huddleston / 
D Cooke 

01/06/2020 Finalise options for a corporate approach to 
sponsorship. 
 
Approval of recommended option 
 
Implementation of any staffing/resource 
changes/requirements 

March 2020 
 
 
April 2020 
 
May 2020 

R Huddleston 
 
 
Leadership 
Team 
R Huddleston / 
Z Bennett 

Place support 
sustainable growth 
 
 
 
Place is inclusive 

Maximised income through 
investment, sponsorship, 
funding and rates and through 
better use of the local 
environment, heritage and 
buildings 
 
People come together through 
creative  and cultural 
opportunities  

P
age 44



Ref Directorate Action Action owner 
Action 
completion date 

Work requirements Work due date Work owner 
Outcome that this 
action links to 

Indicators of success that 
this work contributes to 

R20020 Progress AI/Automation 
opportunities 

R Huddleston / 
Carolyn 
Goddard 

31/03/2021 Identify best practice 
 
Develop business case 
 
Implement pilot in selected service area 
 
Review and assess case for extending solution. 
 

April 2020 
 
May 2020 
 
December 2020 
 
March 2021 

R Huddleston 
 
R Huddleston 
 
ICT  
 
R Huddleston 

Place support 
sustainable growth 
 

Service delivery models 
making use of  technology and 
data 

R20021 Support the development 
and delivery of the 
Dedicated Schools Grant 
recovery plan 

Stuart Smith March 2021 Understand the cost drivers 
 
Identify how to stabilise growth 
 
Work with the DFE for recovery plan sign off 
 
Implement and monitor progress 
 

31/3/2021 Tammy 
Faulkner 

People get a good 
start 

An agreed recovery plan which 
brings the DSG deficit into a 
break even position over an 
agreed time period. 

R20022 Development of an Adult 
Care financial strategy  

Julie Murphy March 2021 Understand expected growth over the next 5 
financial years 
 
Understand the impact of the living wage on 
provider contracts 
 
Develop a funding plan to bring the service into 
a break even position over a 5 year period 
 

31/3/2021 Sam 
Evans/Gareth 
Davies 

People are protected A financial strategy approved 
by Members of ICB and noted 
by Cabinet Members. 

R20023 Development of a balanced 
pooled fund and 
understanding the financial 
implications of the Local 
Care Organisation 

Julie Murphy March 2021 CCG/LA to develop a balanced pooled fund 
position for 20/21 and future years. 
 
In year monitoring to ensure the budget 
assumptions are delivered. 
 
Understand the financial implications of the 
Local Care Organisation and its impact on the 
financial position of the pooled fund. 
 

31/3/2021 Sam 
Evans/Gareth 
Davies 

People are protected 
 
Place support 
sustainable growth 

Deliverable balanced plan 
endorsed by ICB and Cabinet 
Members. 

R20024 Development of an 
integrated risk management 
approach for the Council 
and CCG 

Ian Corbridge March 2021 Consistent approach to management of risk 
through the Pentana system. 

31/3/2021 Martin Nixon People are 
Protected 

Risk report to members of ICB 
and Cabinet in a consistent 
manner. 

R20025 Adult care fee negotiation is 
developed over an agreed 
time period to deliver the 
living wage 

Julie Murphy March 2021 Developing a timeline for Adult Care contracts 
being paid at the real living wage rate. 
 
Financial implications understood. 
 
Funding options considered 

 Gareth Davies People get a good 
start 

Fee negotiation considers the 
implication of the real living 
wage. 
 
Members consider the financial 
implications. 
 
A strategy for implementation 
is endorsed. 

R20026 Development of the budget 
setting process to ensure 
plans are robust and the 
implications of the fair 
funding review are fully 
understood. 

Sam Smith March 2021 Detailed timetable incorporating reporting 
deadlines  
 
Financial ledgers reconciliations completed 
 
Balanced budget presented in a timely manner. 
 
Fair funding and business rates reset 
implications are fully understood. 
 
Procurement planning to be brought into the 
budget cycle 

 Chris 
Mills/Yvonne 
Dunease 

Place is welcoming  Revenue budget is robust and 
produced in a timely manner. 

P
age 45



 

Ref Directorate Action Action owner 
Action 
completion date 

Work requirements Work due date Work owner 
Outcome that this 
action links to 

Indicators of success that 
this work contributes to 

R20027 Further development of 
investment/liability risk 
analysis to cover emerging 
invest to save schemes 
outside the Property Growth 
Fund, ensuring investment 
decisions are taken with a 
Council-wide view of risk 

Michelle 
Ashworth 

March 2021 Detailed schedule/timeline of invest to save 
developments across directorates/future 
financial years including funding analysis 
 
Develop understanding of financial implications, 
working with external advisors as appropriate 
 
Further development of investment/liability risk 
dashboard to incorporate above and include 
long-term implications 
 

31/3/2021 Michelle 
Ashworth/ 
Clare Davies 

Place supports 
sustainable growth 

Investment decisions are taken 
in consideration of the full 
financial implications and wider 
investment risk that the 
Council is exposed to over the 
medium to long term. 

R20028 Development and roll out of 
Member Training to support 
commercial investment 
decisions 

Michelle 
Ashworth 

March 2021 Investigate training programmes currently 
available from relevant providers e.g. CIPFA, 
LGA 
 
Review training provision developed by other 
Local Authorities 
 
Cross-team working with OD/Governance re 
methods of delivery/format 
 
Develop and launch training package 

31/3/2021 Michelle 
Ashworth/ 
Clare Davies 

Place supports 
sustainable growth 

Members make informed 
investment decisions 

R20029 Understand business rates 
and council tax avoidance, 
how can these be 
minimised and income 
maximised. 
 

Carolyn 
Goddard 

March 2021 & 
beyond 

What cause tax avoidance 
How can this be minimised 
What does the council own and is developing 

 RDA/ Carolyn 
Goddard/Peter 
Moss 

Place is welcoming Income opportunities are 
maximised. 

R20030 Implementation of the Key 
Decision Action Plan 

David 
Wilcock/J 
Murphy 

March 2021 Review of Directorate’s Governance 
Arrangements 
 
Roll out of Training 

31/7/2020 
 
 
31/3/2021 

M Garraway Supports prosperous 
places and people 

Procurement activity is 
available for stakeholder 
engagement through 
compliance with the key 
decision process 

P
age 46



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Neighbourhoods 

Directorate Plan 2020/21 P
age 47

A
genda Item

 8



 

Introduction 

This directorate plan outlines the action that Neighbourhoods will take over the coming year, to support our long term vision, priorities and 

outcomes. Our outcomes will be achieved through realisation of our indicators of success. Our ways of working and values and 

behaviours will underpin the action that we take.

 
 
Our vision: To make our borough a great place to grow up, get on and live well 
 
Our priorities: Prosperous people and places 
 
Our outcomes: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 48



 

Indicators of success: Prosperous people 

People get a good start People are protected People are resilient People are healthy People fulfil their 
potential 

More mothers 
breastfeeding for longer 
 
Fewer mothers smoking 
in pregnancy 
 
More children school 
ready 
 
All pupils achieving at all 
key stages 
 
More young people 
participating in 
apprenticeships and 
learning 
 

Reduced risk of 
deliberate harm, 
accidental injury and 
neglect for both children 
and adults 
 
Reduced rates of children 
and adults needing 
protection and care  
 
Fewer children and 
young people entering 
the youth justice system 
 
More people with Special 
Educational Needs and 
Disabilities supported to 
know their rights and  
receiving joined up 
support  
 
More carers receiving 
appropriate support 
 
More families staying 
together                                
through early intervention 

Children and young people 
have high self-esteem and 
are satisfied with their life, 
including being free from 
bullying at school 
 
Fewer people have 
common and severe 
mental health disorders 
 
People have good levels of 
social contact and are not 
lonely or isolated, including 
adult care users, older 
people and carers 
 
Fewer households living in 
fuel poverty 
 
Fewer people living in 
deprivation, suffering the 
impact of Welfare Reform 
or living in poverty in later 
life 
 
More households 
prevented from becoming 
homeless 
 

More people are 
physically active including 
the over 50’s 
 
More people are a 
healthy weight 
 
Reduced harm from 
drugs, alcohol and 
smoking 
 
Fewer people dying early 
from diseases 
  
More children have good 
oral health 
 
Fewer older people 
suffering from falls 
 
Fewer people 
experiencing lengthy 
hospital stays through 
reablement and care at 
home 

People have access to 
good or outstanding 
places of learning 
 
People have higher 
levels of qualifications 
and skills, including 
being able to access 
and use technology 
 
More people have 
higher earnings 
 
More Rochdale 
employees receiving the 
living wage, getting a 
fair day’s pay for a fair 
day’s work  
 
More people in good 
employment or 
engaging in meaningful 
activity during the 
working day 
 

 

 

 

P
age 49



 

Indictors of success: Prosperous places 

Place is age friendly Place is inclusive Place is welcoming Place provides 
opportunities 

Place support 
sustainable growth 

Younger and older 
people engaging in   
intergenerational 
activities 
 
More people aged 50-64 
in employment, training 
or volunteering 
 
More older people 
participating in 
community activities  
 
People supported to live 
well with dementia 
 
People have access to 
quality home care,         
residential and nursing 
care services 
 
 
 
 
 

People come together 
through creative  and 
cultural opportunities  
 
More people engaging in 
volunteering, acts of 
kindness and doing things 
for each other 
 
Fewer people experiencing 
discrimination and greater 
consideration of the needs 
of people who are 
disadvantaged or suffer 
inequality 
 
More people living in 
harmony together, 
whatever their background, 
religion or culture  
 
More people have their 
voice heard through 
engagement and 
consultation, especially 
young people 

More and a better mix of 
affordable and higher 
value homes, including 
land being made available 
to support development 
 
Sustainable homes that 
have age and 
environmentally friendly 
features 
 
More empty homes being 
brought back into use and 
an improved private rented 
sector 
 
Air and land free from 
pollution and infrastructure 
that protects against 
climate change by using        
natural/renewable sources 
 
Accessible, quality 
highways and transport 
options, including cycling 
and walking 
 
Reduced crime and 
antisocial behaviour 

More jobs created and 
good quality 
apprenticeships 
 
Higher proportion of 
skilled work in the labour 
market 
 
Town centres offer a 
balance of employment, 
commercial, leisure, 
community, housing,          
healthcare and 
educational use 
 
More businesses 
relocating, starting up or 
expanding in the borough 
 
More land and sites for 
employment 

Maximised income 
through investment, 
sponsorship, funding 
and rates and through 
better use of the local 
environment, heritage 
and buildings 
 
People spending money 
on local goods and 
services to keep more of 
the Rochdale pound in 
Rochdale 
 
Reduced demand on 
health and care services 
(A&E, hospitals, GP’s) 
 
Healthy, stable and 
quality workforces, 
particularly in key 
sectors (care, social 
work etc.) 
 
Improved availability 
and reliability of online 
access including better 
internet speeds and 
public wifi 
 
Service delivery models 
making use of         
technology and data 

P
age 50



 

Values and behaviours 

The values and behaviours support the Council’s vision and seek to inspire employees’ best efforts and help in building a positive culture.  

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I seek out opportunities to 
network with and learn from 

others and to put that 
learning or new ways of 

working into practice

I work closely with residents 
and partners to shape 

outcomes and design and 
deliver services

I recognise that I am 
spending public money and 

always look for the most 
efficient and effective way of 

doing that

I welcome opportunities to do 
things differently and 

respond positively to change 
and feedback

I am honest in all of my 
interactions with others and 

realistic about what is 
practical and affordable

I don’t shy away from difficult 
conversations

I am always positive when 
talking about the borough 

and the work we do 

I seek out opportunities to 
talk about our achievements

I congratulate others when 
things have gone well

I understand how my own 
positive behaviour reflects 

positively on the reputation of 
the borough 

I have positive and respectful 
relationships with my 

colleagues, residents and 
partners regardless of their 

background, social identity or 
circumstances

I avoid making assumptions 
about people and ensure I 
listen to their experiences 

and perspective before 
making a decision or taking 

action

I always try to do things with 
people rather than to them

I understand that one size 
does not always fit all and 

that it is fair to take account 
of people’s differences in my 

work

I challenge inappropriate 
behaviour or language

Pioneering & Open in our approach: We are ambitious for the people and place of Rochdale and will work collaboratively with local 
people and partners, building relationships based on respect and openness, to deliver the best possible outcomes 
 
Proud of the difference we make: We will celebrate and share our achievements and act as Ambassadors for the borough of Rochdale 
 
Passionate about the diversity of the borough: We love the diversity within our workforce and local communities and will strive for 
excellence in meeting different needs and aspirations 

P
age 51



 

Our ways of working 

The Council is facing significant financial challenges, which means that we have reduced capacity to deliver services. We will adopt working 

practices that will improve our capacity to deliver, facilitate ongoing service delivery and support us in achieving our outcomes. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 52



 

Directorate Structure 

The management structure of the directorate is detailed below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Director of 
Neighbourhoods            

Mark Widdup

Assistant Director of 
Place                       

Donna Bowler

Assistant Director -
Information, Customers 

& Communities       
John Rooney

P
age 53



 

Directorate functions and services 

The Directorate has responsibility for a range of service areas and activities. 

 Environmental Management 

 Highways (including Balfour Beatty) 

 Building & Surveying  

 Management of Number One Riverside 

 Facilities management inc Cleaning & Catering / School Catering 

 School Crossing Patrol Service 

 Management of Rochdale Town Hall 

 Property & Projects  

 Public Protection  

 Street lighting  

 Strategic Housing, including RBH  

 Corporate Policy, Performance and Improvement (including research & intelligence)  

 ICT (Operations & Service Delivery)  

 ICT (Business Applications Services)  

 Information Governance  

 Communications (Marketing, public relations, media relations, digital services)  

 Customer Access (Contact Centre and Customer Feedback)  

 Townships, Libraries and Events 

 Integrated Place Teams  

 Overseeing Public Service Reform 

 Community Safety 

 Coroners and Registrars  

 Emergency planning 

Lead Cabinet Members 

Cabinet members with relevant portfolio holder responsibilities oversee Council Directorates 

 Cllr Neil Emmott – Housing & Environment 

 Cllr Daalat Ali  – Cabinet Member for Corporate & Resources  

 Cllr Janet Emsley – Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods, Community & Culture 

 Cllr Sarah Rowbotham – Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing 

P
age 54



 Cllr Carol Wardle – Cabinet member for Planning Development and Housing   

 

 

 

Directorate Responsibilities 

The directorate has the following responsibilities: 

 Deliver high quality public realm and universal environmental management services  

 Promote regeneration, investment and housing growth across the borough and meet the housing needs of local people 

 Maintain and develop the asset portfolio for infrastructure of roads and bridges in the borough  

 Deliver a Public Protection service to support an improved borough  

 Work with partners to make the borough a safer place  

 Promote the borough as a good place to live, work, invest and visit 

 Manage information and business intelligence to support decision-making and policy development  

 Streamline business processes and modernise customer access  

 Implement Place-based Public Service Reform across the borough to improve outcomes for residents 

 

Key Documents 

The directorate works in accordance with the following strategies and plans: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 55



 

 

 

Directorate Actions 

The table outlines the action that will be taken to support transformation, improvement and direction of travel. It highlights the work that will be 

undertaken to deliver on the action. Business as usual activities are not included.  

Ref Directorate 
Action 

Action 
owner 

Action 
completion 

date 

Work requirements Work 
due date  

Work 
owner 

Outcome 
that this 
action 
links to 

Indicators of 
success that 
this work 
contributes to 

NDP01 Lead an Electoral 
Review to ensure 
areas have the 
recommended 
numbers of voters 

John 
Rooney 

April 2021 Consultation and engagement on 
the proposals. 
 
Final council report submitted to 
Boundary Commission.  
 
Final decision on the ward and 
councillors numbers made by the 
Boundary Commission 
 

Aug 2020 
 
 
Sept 2020 
 
 
April 2021 

Caroline 
Wolfenden 

Place is 
inclusive 

More people 
have their voice 
heard through 
engagement 
and 
consultation, 
especially young 
people 

NDP02 Plan for and deliver 
Census 2021 

John 
Rooney 

March 2021 Confirm work programme 
following guidance from Office of  
National Statistics  
 
 
Recruitment and communication 
complete for  census 2021 

Aug 2020 
 
 
 
 
March 
2021 
 
 
 

Caroline 
Wolfenden 

Place is 
inclusive 
 

More people 
have their voice 
heard through 
engagement 
and 
consultation, 
especially young 
people 

NDP03 Develop new 
Communications 
Strategy 2020-23 

John 
Rooney 

March 2021 Consult members and leadership 
to agree objectives and priorities. 
 
A refresh of the council’s 
communication strategy will be 
completed during 2020/21, 
following the conclusion of our 
current three-year plan and 

Oct 2020 
 
 
January 
2021 
 

Danny 
Brierley 

Place is 
inclusive 
 

More people 
have their voice 
heard through 
engagement 
and 
consultation, 
especially young 
people 

P
age 56



bearing in mind priorities arising 
from coronavirus.  

NDP04 Expand super-fast 
broadband to at 
least 25% of the 
borough through Full 
Fibre to premises 
project  

John 
Rooney 

March 2021 Agree with Greater Manchester 

partners how benefits of super-

fast broadband will be maximised 

across the borough 

67 premises (of 99) with a public 

sector presence across the 

borough connected with full fibre 

to increase connectivity  

Enable the use of the full fibre for 

residents and businesses through 

engagement and appointment of 

a market supplier 

Dec 2020 

 

 

March 

2021 

 

March 

2021 

Scott 
Moseley 

Place 
supports 
sustainable 
growth 

Improved 
availability and 
reliability of 
online access 
including better 
internet speeds 
and public wifi 
 

NDP05 Work in partnership 
to implement new 
community safety 
plan to reduce Crime 
and disorder 

John 
Rooney 

March 2021 Implement new ‘Reducing Crime 
and Anti-Social Behaviour’ 
borough-wide action plan and 
strategy with partners.  
 
Implement new ‘Reducing 
Reoffending’ borough- wide 
action plan and strategy with 
partners.  
 
 
Complete Community Safety 
Partnership information sharing 
protocol with partners.  

Nov 2020 
 
 
 
 
Dec 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 
2021 
 

Chris Highton Place is 
welcoming 
 

Reduced crime 
and anti-social 
behaviour 

NDP06 Implement plans to 
prevent community 
tensions and support 
a more cohesive and 
integrated 
community 

John 
Rooney 

March 2021 Work in partnership with the 
voluntary sector in the delivery of 
cohesion and integration activities 
to support the recovery of the 
borough post Covid 19  

Dec  2020 
 

Saj Miah Place is 
inclusive  
 
 

More people 
live, work and 
socialise  in 
harmony 
together, 
whatever their 
background, 
religion or 
culture  
 

P
age 57



NDP07 Co-ordinate the roll 
out of Public Service 
Reform across the 
borough 

John 
Rooney 

March 2021 Partnership put in place to 
support reform activity across 
Council, partners and Health and 
Social Care following reform 
benchmark exercise 
 
 
Continued development of new 
service models as health and 
social care and voluntary sector 
transformation takes place 
 

Oct 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jan 2021 

John Rooney Place is 
inclusive 
 

More people 
have their voice 
heard through 
engagement 
and 
consultation, 
especially young 
people 

NDP08 Complete roll out of 
integrated place 
teams and develop 
plan around future 
delivery 

John 
Rooney 

March 2021 Complete annual citizen-led 
leadership challenges in line with 
Cooperative and equalities 
agenda linked in with GMCA 
priorities.  
 
Embed place teams, as part of 
neighbourhood and locality 
working.  Integrate covid 
response and recovery strands as 
they emerge.  Ensure this work 
demonstrably contributes to the 
reform and effective delivery of 
public services in line with GMCA 
objectives around Place.  

December 
2020  
 
 
 
 
 
March 
2021 

Helen Chicot  Place is 
inclusive 

More people 
have their voice 
heard through 
engagement 
and 
consultation, 
especially young 
people 

NDP09 Finalise and 
commence delivery 
of Climate Change 
Strategy 
 

John 
Rooney 

March 2021 Agree priorities of dedicated 
budget 
 
 
 
Development of delivery plan to 
address climate change 
 
 
 
 
 

Oct 2020 
 
 
 
 
Nov 2020 

Caroline 
Wolfenden 

Place is 
welcoming 

Air and land free 
from pollution 
and 
infrastructure 
that protects 
against climate 
change by using        
natural/renewabl
e sources 

P
age 58



NDP10 Transform and 
improve customer 
and digital provision 

John 
Rooney 

March 2021 Final sign off and action plan in 
place for Rochdale Digital 
Strategy 
 
 
Agree future role and scope of the 
Council’s Customer Contact 
Centre 

Oct 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
Dec 2020 
 
 

John 
Rooney/Reb
ecca 
Huddleston 

Place 
supports 
sustainable 
growth 

Service delivery 
models making 
use of         
technology and 
data 

NDP11 Continue to modify  
the homelessness 
prevention strategy 
in line with 
legislative changes, 
GM and national 
priorities  
 

Donna 
Bowler 

Dec 2020 Audit existing strategy 
 
Identify strategic priorities inc 
issues relating to housing access 
and supply;  
Out of Borough placements; early 
intervention and prevention 
 
Establish a regional Strategy sub 
group 
 
Develop a revised Homelessness 
strategy 

July 2020 
 
Sept 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
Oct 2020 
 
 
Dec 2020 

Ian Jolley People are 
resilient 

More 
households 
prevented from 
becoming 
homeless 
 
 

NDP12  Modify the Council’s 
Housing Allocations 
Policy and Scheme 
to meet statutory 
requirements and 
makes the 
maximises the use 
of housing stock in 
the borough 

Donna 
Bowler 

March 2021 Review of current policy and 
scheme to ensure it is fit for 
purpose 
 
Complete phase 2&3 of 
Commission of business 
transformation study/service 
development   
 
Develop and implement quick 
wins from 6 agreed prototypes 
currently being explored in  
 
Phase 2 – Develop consultation 
and implementation plans for 
longer term changes identified 
through Phase 1&2 
 
Review housing outcomes 

Sept 2020 
 
 
 
October 
2020 
 
 
 
Dec 2020 
 
 
 
January  
2021 
 
 
 
March 
2021 
 

Peter 
Maynard 

People are 
resilient 

More 
households 
prevented from 
becoming 
homeless 
 
 
 

P
age 59



NDP13 Accelerated Housing 
Programme 

Donna 
Bowler 

March 2021 
Annual 
programme 

Delivery of 4 sites of agreed 
annual accelerated programme to 
planning stage and start on site. 
 
Deliver recommendations and 
action plan from consultant study 
to inform approach to delivering 
higher value housing 

Dec 2020 
 
 
 
March 
2021 

Donna 
Bowler 

Place is 
welcoming 

More and better 
mix of affordable 
and higher value 
homes, 
including land 
made available 
to support 
development 

NDP14 Develop and deliver 
the infrastructure 
proposals that are 
required to support 
the Greater 
Manchester 2040 
Transport Strategy 
which will help to 
support the 
emerging Greater 
Manchester Spatial 
Framework.  

Donna 
Bowler 

March 2021 Complete Analysis of all relevant 
traffic modelling data 
 
 
Identify traffic mitigation 
measures 
 
 
 

Sept 2021 
 
 
 
March 
2021 
onwards 

Alan 
Webster/ 
Chris Woods 
 
 

Place is 
welcoming 

Accessible, 
quality highways 
and transport 
options, 
including cycling 
and walking 

NDP15 Re-procurement of 
the Highway Service 
Term maintenance 
Contract  

Donna 
Bowler 

March 2021 Undertake Option appraisal and 
Determine Scope and complete 
tender documentation for new 
Contract. 
 
Commence Formal tender of the 
contract 
 
 
Award Contract 
 
 
Commence new Contract 
 

Jan 2021 
 
 
 
 
Feb/Mar 
2021 
 
 
Dec 2021 
 
 
April 2022 

Andrew 
Storey 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Place is 
welcoming 

Accessible, 
quality highways 
and transport 
options, 
including cycling 
and walking 

NDP16 Highways 
Contributions to 
tackling Climate 
Change ;  
Develop and deliver 
the policy, strategy 
and infrastructure 
that will deliver on 
the objectives of the 

Donna 
Bowler 

March 2021 Engage on a review of all 
potential EV charging sites  
 
Develop a policy and live strategy 
for EV’s  
 
Work with all Stakeholders to 
ensure all signage is agreed and 

March 
2021 
 
March 
2021 
 
March 
2021 

Chris Woods/ 
Nathan 
McKendrey 

Place is 
welcoming 

Air and land free 
from pollution 
and 
infrastructure 
that protects 
against climate 
change by using        
natural/renewabl
e sources 

P
age 60



Greater Manchester 
Clean Air Plan. 
 

ready for implementation for the 
Clean Air Zone. 

NDP17 Develop and 
implement a strategy 
to tackle fly tipping 
more effectively 

Martin 
Taylor 

March 2021 Identify best practice in other local 
authorities. 
 
Analyse data to identify 
contributing factors from an 
area/neighbourhood perspective 
 
Cabinet report on adoption of 
strategy and work plan.  
 
Implement strategy and delivery 
programme 

June 2020 
 
 
June 2020 
 
 
 
October 
2020 
 
By March 
2021 

Anthony 
Johns 
 
 

Place is 
welcoming 

Air and land free 
from pollution 
and 
infrastructure 
that protects 
against climate 
change by using 
natural/renewabl
e resources 

NDP18 Environmental 
Management  
Contributions to 
tackling Climate 
Change;  
Develop a  
Highway, Parks & 
open space tree 
management 
strategy  

Martin 
Taylor 

March 2021 Carry out a full review of all tree 
assets to include mapping and full 
condition survey to identify related 
risks and improvement 
requirements 
 
Develop a long-term (ten year) 
tree assets management 
programme of work and related 
policy 
 
Cabinet report on adoption of 
strategy and related policy 
alongside invest to save capital 
bid to enable delivery 
 
Implement strategy and 
commence programme of works 

June 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
Sept 2020 
 
 
 
 
Nov 2020 
 
 
 
 
March 
2021 

Project 
Manager 
 
 
 
 
 

Place  is 
welcoming 

Air and land free 
from pollution 
and 
infrastructure 
that protects 
against climate 
change by using 
natural/renewabl
e resources 

NDP19 Contributions to 
tackling Climate 
Change; 
Develop a Green 
Travel plan for staff 
based at Green 
Lane depot 
Implement a 
communications 
plan to reduce food 

Martin 
Taylor 

March 2021 Identify and implement schemes 
to encourage staff to walk, cycle, 
car share or use public transport 
to get to work and travel between 
sites.  
 
Work with GMCA and WRAP on 
campaigns to reduce food waste 
in the residual waste bin. 
 

March 
2021 
 
 
 
 
Oct 2020 
 
 
 

Jo Oliver 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Place is 
welcoming 

Air and land free 
from pollution 
and 
infrastructure 
that protects 
against climate 
change by using        
natural/renewabl
e sources 
 

P
age 61



waste and 
encourage residents 
use kerbside food 
waste collections 
Implement 
measures to reduce 
energy consumption 
and reduce our 
carbon footprint at 
Green Lane depot 

Identify measures to help green 
our vehicle fleet 
 
Identify measures to increase 
energy generation at Green Lane 
depot and identified Parks/open 
space.  

Oct 2020 
 
 
March 
2021 
 

Mark 
Bobrowicz 
 
 

NDP20 Public Protection 
Contributions to 
tackling Climate 
Change;  
Support the 
development and 
implementation of 
the GM Clean Air 
Plan to tackle 
nitrogen dioxide 
exceedances 

Donna 
Bowler 

March 2021 Support TfGM with the 
development and delivery of other 
stakeholder engagement events 
 
Support TfGM with the 
development and delivery of the 
statutory consultation around the 
GM Clean Air Plan 
 
 
Support TfGM in the production 
and submission of the Full 
Business Case for the GM Clean 
Air Plan 

Sept 2020 
 
 
 
 
Dec 2020 
 
 
 
 
Mar 2021 

Nicola 
Rogers 
 
 
 
 

Place is 
welcoming 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Air and land free 
from pollution 
and 
infrastructure 
that protects 
against climate 
change by using        
natural/renewabl
e sources 
 
 

NDP21 Contributions to 
tackling Climate 
Change;  
Support and 
promote the RBC 
Eco-Business 
Pledge Scheme 

Donna 
Bowler 

March 2021 Raise awareness of the RBC Eco 
Business Pledge Scheme with 
businesses and the general public 
 
Increase the number of 
businesses pledging to be Eco- 
Businesses 
 
Promote and celebrate the 
businesses who pledge to be 
Eco-Businesses  

March 
2021 
 
 
 
March 
2021 
 
 
March 
2021 

Nicola 
Rogers 
 
 
 
 

Place 
supports 
sustainable 
growth 

People 
spending money 
on local goods 
and services to 
keep more of 
the Rochdale 
pound in 
Rochdale 
 

NDP22 Contributions to 
tackling climate 
change; Maintaining 
Statutory 
Compliance to our 
assets 

Donna 
Bowler 

March 2021 Ensure all testing and inspection 
is in place to our operational 
assets 

March 
2021  

Gary 
Pilkington 

Place is 
welcoming 

Air and land free 
from pollution 
and 
infrastructure 
that protects 
against climate 
change by using        

P
age 62



 

 

 

natural/renewabl
e sources 
 

NDP23 Increasing energy 
efficiency to our 
asset portfolio  

Donna 
Bowler 

March 2021 Looking at new initiative ways to 
reduce our energy costs and 
promote reducing our carbon 
footprint 
Work with GM authorities on new 
energy initiatives including green 
alternatives to gas. 

March 
2021  

Gary 
Pilkington 

Place is 
welcoming 

Air and land free 
from pollution 
and 
infrastructure 
that protects 
against climate 
change by using        
natural/renewabl
e sources 
 

P
age 63



 

Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

 

Date of Meeting 22 September 2020 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for  

Resources 
Report Author Carolyn Whitham 
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

3rd & 4th Quarter Corporate Complaints 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. The report provides Members with a summary of corporate complaints and 

compliments received during the third and fourth quarters of 2019/20. 
 

Recommendation 

 
2. It is recommended that Members of the Committee consider and scrutinise the 

information contained in the report and assess whether further information or 
explanation is required regarding any of the issues raised in the report. 

 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. Part of the Council’s performance management process is to ensure the 

Authority’s ambition to continuously improve services is realised, and actions 
or decisions may need to be taken to maintain improvement. 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman’s definition of a complaint 
is “an expression of dissatisfaction about a Council service (whether that 
service is provided directly by the council or by a contractor or partner) that 
requires a response” 
 
In total, 247 new complaints were received during the second half of 2019/20 
across all services.  The majority of the complaints were resolved at stage 
one, with only 13 escalating to stage two and 2 complaints being dealt with at 
stage three.   A total of 110 compliments were received in this reporting 
period. 
 
There was a slight reduction in the number of complaints received during this 
reporting period compared to the same period last year, and 34% of the 
overall number of complaints received were found to be not upheld. 
 

Page 64

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1 

Lessons learned 
 
Complaints provide the Council with valuable feedback to develop and 
improve our services to meet the needs of our customers.  The following are 
examples of changes made by services in response to feedback from 
residents during this reporting period: 
 
The resources available to manage vehicle dropped crossing installations will 
be increased by both the Highways Service and the contractor and the 
programming element of the works will be improved to ensure they are 
completed quickly. Communication with residents will be improved to ensure 
work is carried out on an agreed date and the resident is fully informed if there 
are any changes. 
 
Officers in the Planning Service were advised to ensure that going forward 
they seek the permission of objectors if it is necessary to specify the address 
of objectors in public reports. 
 
Following discussions with the Council’s Autism Champion, basic training in 
autism is to be provided to all School Crossing Patrol Officers.   
 
ICT to consider a resident’s suggestion of a shutdown of public computers in 
libraries after a period of inactivity.  
 
Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman 
 
Details of complaints dealt with by the Ombudsman are presented in a 
separate report which is produced on receipt of the Local Government & 
Social Care Ombudsman’s Annual Review. 
 

Alternatives Considered 
 

None.  Information has been compiled from the complaints recording system 
used by all services to record complaints and compliments. 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. None of the complaints dealt with in this reporting period had financial 

implications. 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this 

report. 
 
Complainants have the opportunity to refer their complaint to the Local 
Government & Social Care Ombudsman for up to twelve months from 
completion of the Council’s complaints process; therefore there is a risk that 
the outcome of a future Ombudsman investigation into a complaint may result 
in a recommended financial remedy.  Complaints considered by the 
Ombudsman are reported to Overview and Scrutiny Committee annually on 

Page 65



receipt of the Ombudsman’s annual report.  
 

Consultation 

 
7. Not applicable. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. None.  

 

For Further Information Contact: Carolyn Whitham, Tel: 01706 923508, 
carolyn.whitham@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

Page 66



Appendix 1 

CORPORATE COMPLAINTS 3rd & 4th QUARTERS 2019/20 

 

The Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman’s definition of a complaint is “an 

expression of dissatisfaction about a Council service (whether that service is provided 

directly by the council or by a contractor or partner) that requires a response” 

The Council’s Corporate Complaints Policy consists of a three stage process, providing a 

point of appeal at stage three via the Customer Feedback Team for complainants who remain 

dissatisfied with the outcome of their complaint to a service. 

 

New complaints received 

 

A total of 247 new complaints were received in the second half of 2019-20. As can be seen 

from the graph below, the number of complaints received by the majority of services 

fluctuated slightly over the four quarters of the year with the lowest number of complaints 

being received in the third quarter. 

 

 

Details of the complaints received in the reporting period and examples of lessons learned 

as a result of complaints are included in the main report. 

 

Year on year comparison 

The graph below compares the total number of complaints received in the second half of 
2019-20 with the same period last year.  There was a slight reduction in the overall number 
of complaints received this year with the majority of services receiving fewer complaints in 
this reporting period compared to the previous year.   
 

Page 67



Appendix 1 

 

Complaints by Directorate 

 

Details of the nature of complaints received by each Directorate can be found in the following 

tables.  The tables include details of all complaints that were either upheld or partially upheld 

together with the number of complaints that were found to be not upheld.  A number of 

complaints are reported as being ‘out of scope’.  These are complaints where it was 

established that the subject of the complaint was the responsibility of another organisation 

e.g. Rochdale Boroughwide Housing or Riverside Housing and the complaints were referred 

on to be dealt with under the organisation’s own complaints procedure. 
 

AGILISYS 
 

 

 

 
 
 

ECONOMY 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Service Area Nature of complaint 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 

Contact Centre Call handling 2 2 

 Call waiting times 1 0 

 Information provided by Advisor 1 2 

 Not upheld 1 1 

  Total 5 5 

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 

Planning Planning enforcement 1 0 

 Planning application process 0 2 

 Level of detail in committee report 1 0 

  Not upheld 5 6 

 Still ongoing 0 1 

  Total 7 9 

Page 68



Appendix 1 

NEIGHBOURHOODS 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Service Area Nature of complaint 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 

Environmental Management Missed / continual missed bins 19 25 

 Actions/attitude of operative 7 9 

 Bins not returned to collection point  4 5 

 Resident’s bin used as ‘slave’ bin 4 3 

 Replacement caddy liners not left 3 3 

 New bin request  3 7 

 Grass maintenance 2 0 

 Condition of cemetery  1 0 

 Debris following waste collection 1 2 

 Fly tipping 1 1 

 Tree maintenance 1 1 

 Noise from bin collection at 6.50am 1 0 

 Street cleansing 0 1 

 Delay in removal of unwanted bin 0 1 

 Response from Enforcement Team 0 1 

 Not upheld 18 17 

 Out of scope of complaints policy 0 1 

 Still ongoing 0 1 

 Total 65 78 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 

Customers & Communities Issues with computers in libraries 2 0 

 Not upheld 1 0 

  Total 3 0 

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 

Facilities Management Actions of Crossing Patrol Supervisor 1 0 

 Actions of School Crossing Patrol 0 1 

 Not upheld 0 1 

  Total 1 2 

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 

Finance Tone of letter received regarding debt 0 1 

 Not upheld 1 0 

 Out of scope 0 2 

  Total 1 3 

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 

Strategic Housing Out of scope 1 0 

  Total 1 0 

Page 69



Appendix 1 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
 

Service Area Nature of complaint 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 

Public Protection Missed pest control appointment 1 0 

 Food Hygiene & Safety Inspection 0 1 

 Manner of Licensing Officer 0 1 

 Not upheld 4 4 

 Ongoing 0 1 

  Total 5 7 

 
RESOURCES 
 

Service Area Nature of complaint 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 

Revenues & Benefits Council Tax 2 1 

 Not upheld 2 10 

 Out of scope of complaints policy 0 1 

  Total 4 12 

 
 

Service Area Nature of complaint 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 

 Legal & Democratic Not upheld 1 1 

 Total 1 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 

Highways & Property Position of new railings outside school 2 0 

 Condition of road following recent repairs 2 0 

 Disruption from  timing of roadworks 1 0 

 Raised steel works on road 1 0 

 Delay in installation of dropped kerb 1 0 

 Mud on road from nearby development 1 0 

 Actions of Civil Enforcement Officer  1 0 

 Blocked gullies 1 1 

 Lack of response to service request 1 3 

 Lack of communication re sale of land 0 1 

 Debris on pavement following roadworks 0 1 

 Speed of gritting vehicle 0 1 

 Condition of pavement 1 1 

 Damaged speed bump 0 1 

 Gully left uncovered 0 1 

 Not upheld  4 6 

 Ongoing 0 1 

 Out of scope of complaints policy 3 1 

  Total 19 18 

Page 70



Appendix 1 

Complaint outcomes 

 

The graph below shows the percentage of stage one complaints received that were either 

upheld or partially upheld during the second half of 2019/20. There was a slight increase in 

the percentage of complaints upheld in December, the majority of which related to waste 

collection services. 

 

 
 

 

Complaints received by Ward 

 

Numbers of complaints reported by Ward are dependent upon customers providing their 

address details.  The graph below shows the numbers of complaints received by Ward during 

the second half of 2019-20.  It also indicates where address details have not been provided 

or the complainant resides outside of the Borough.  

 

Page 71



Appendix 1 

 
 

As can be seen from the graph above, there were some fluctuations in the number of 

complaints received from residents in most wards over the two quarters.  The complaints 

related to a number of different service areas and a variety of issues.  Details of the 

complaints received from residents of each Ward are provided to Ward Councillors on a 

monthly basis. 

 

Service Requests  

 

A large number of complaints received are in fact service requests.  A service request is an 

initial request for service or report of a fault, for example a report of a missed bin, or a pot 

hole that needs to be repaired.  Details are included below to evidence the very low numbers 

of service requests that subsequently lead to complaints.  For example, the total number of 

complaints received by Environmental Management and Highways in the second half of this 

year was 16,623 and 2,086 respectively, however; the number of service requests dealt with 

by both services during the same period was significantly higher. 

 

Highways 

 

Service Area Requests Q3 Requests Q4 

Bridges and Structures 7 8 

Highway Maintenance 661 720 

Network Development 58 197 

Network Management /Traffic/Road Safety 165 160 

Parking Services 45 65 

   

Total 936 1150 

 

 Page 72



Appendix 1 

Environmental Management 

 

Service Area Requests Q3 Requests Q4 

New Wheelie bin request 2819 3108 

Missed bin 1034 1115 

General enquiry – street /waste services 318 189 

Fly tipping 2024 2254 

Assisted collection 48 46 

Remove bin 322 308 

Information/enquiry – enforcement 99 60 

Bulky collection 706 817 

Tree maintenance 98 111 

Dead animal 39 45 

Dog fouling 68 127 

Untidy garden 145 192 

Abandoned vehicle  2 0 

Grass/shrub/hedge maintenance 47 29 

Litter bin 38 51 

Spillage on road 28 22 

Graffiti  53 41 

Sharps/drugs/paraphernalia 0 6 

Trade waste 16 9 

Fly posting 37 36 

Ragwort/Knotweed 5 6 

Travellers enquiry  0 0 

Caddy liner request  25 24 

Rights of Way  25 31 

    

Total 7996 8627 

 

Compliments 

 

In addition to complaints, compliments are also received from customers and shared with the 

teams concerned.  The resident is always thanked for taking the time to contact the Council 

with their comments. 

 

The graph below shows the total number of compliments received during the second half of 

2019-20.   

 

A total of 110 compliments were recorded during the third and fourth quarters, a selection of 

which can be found below.   

 

 

Page 73



Appendix 1 

 

 

“I would like to spend time to write to you to compliment your employee who did a fantastic 

job of clearing the leaves up from Cherwell Avenue, Heywood this morning. He made sure 

that the pathways and even the driveways from the road to the paths were cleared. Now it’s 

safe to walk, well done that man.” 

 

“I want to just let you know how amazing your officer (School cleaning & catering) has been 

this week; as ever nothing is ever too much for that man but he has far exceeded all 

expectations this week and his support and hard work has been invaluable. As well as 

working ridiculously long hours, the time and effort he has put into doing his job and helping 

everyone else with theirs has been beyond anything we could have expected from any 

member of staff permanent or otherwise. He is a pleasure to have on site and such a humble 

fella, he never moans or complains – I would have been lost without him!” 

 

“Today I had to carry out the daunting task of registering the death of my father-in-law. The 

meeting and assistance I received from the registrar was first class, informative and 

extremely helpful. Many thanks.” 

 

“I wanted to acknowledge our appreciation for all you have done through today under 

significant pressure. To have discharged 6 out of the 8 (planning) conditions really has put 

us in a great position to get the last two over the line by Friday.” 

 

“I would like to place on record my thanks and commend your council workers who have done 

a magnificent job on the grass verges and shrub and bush maintenance. Thanks to all for a 

job very well done.” 

 

“You all as a team (Contact Centre) have been absolutely wonderful in dealing with my 

queries”  Page 74



Appendix 1 

 

“The running, planning and operation of the wedding was fantastic, clearly a winning formula.   

The catering provided for the wedding was outstanding, all the food was utterly delicious.   

The service from all members of staff encountered during visits has been faultless, everyone 

always well turned out, polite and helpful.” 

 

“I would just like to say the bin men who cover my area are absolutely brilliant! They are 
always so helpful, polite and do an amazing job. I would just like to recognise the hard work 
they do and how well they do it.” 
 

Customer satisfaction with the process 

 

The Customer Feedback Team monitors complaints received and recorded across the 

Council to ensure compliance with complaint policy timescales and consistency in 

implementation of the process. 

 

During the second half of 2019-20, a total of 247 new complaints were received, and of these 

only 13 escalated to the next stage in the complaints process, indicating that the majority of 

customers were satisfied with the response and action taken by the service concerned at the 

lowest level.   

Page 75



 

Report to Cabinet 

 

 

Date of Meeting 29th September 2020 
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for Finance 
Report Author Samantha Smith 
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Finance Update Report Period 4 2020/21 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. To inform Cabinet and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 

Council’s forecast 2020/21 financial position as at the end of July 2020. 
 

1.1. The Finance Update report contains details of the following: 
 

 The forecast Revenue outturn position, which is a pressure of £11,426k. The 
General Fund pressure relating to Covid-19 is £26,920k, partially offset by the use 
of the government funding relating to Covid-19 of £16,032k.  Non-Covid-19 
pressures are currently reported as an in year pressure of £538k. This being a 
movement of £1,651k largely from additional funding to address pressures in 
Adult care. 

 Savings plans of £4,169k ongoing and £280k one off, with a balance to address 
of £764k.  The balance to address being an impact of Covid-19. 

 An update on the Health & Social Care Pool Fund. 

 Forecast Capital expenditure of £135,430k, after re-phasing of £23,407k, 
£22,000k for schools being delivered in the next financial year and funded 
through external grants, grant increases of £2,295k for transport schemes and a 
budget reduction due to the transfer of £18k funding to an Academy.  

 The forecast 2020/21 Collection Fund position of a deficit of £30,450k, which will 
be partially mitigated by increased government Section 31 grant of £20,950k, 
leaving a residual pressure of £9,500k, this pressure relating to the impact of 
Covid. The Council’s share of the forecast 20/21 Collection Fund deficit is 
£8,381k, which will impact on the Council’s General Fund budget for 21/22. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 76

Agenda Item 10



Recommendation 

 
2.1 Cabinet notes the forecast 2020/21 financial positions for Revenue, Capital, and 

the Collection Fund as at the end of July 2020. 

2.2 Cabinet approves the utilisation of the 3rd tranche of emergency Covid 19 funding of 
£2,416k detailed in section 4.1.1. 

2.3 Cabinet notes the forecast Health & Social Care Pool Budget position as detailed in 
section 4.2. 

2.4 Cabinet approves the Budget Pressure requests in section 4.3 

2.5 Cabinet approves the procurement process in relation to the use of the Insurance 
Reserve for the Town Hall restoration project 

2.6 Cabinet note the forecast unachieved savings target in section 4.4 

2.7 Cabinet notes the net Capital budget changes of £2,277k detailed in section 4.6.2 

2.8 Cabinet notes the Capital re-phasing of £23,407k detailed in section 4.6.3. 

2.9 Cabinet approves the request to change the use of Capital Budget as detailed in 
section 4.6.5. 

2.10 Cabinet notes the forecast 2020/21 Collection Fund position detailed in section 4.7 

 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. Cabinet Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the authority, 

as effective budget management is critical to ensuring financial resources are spent 
in line with the budget and are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. 
 
This report focuses on the forecast 2020/21 financial position as at the end July 2020. 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 

Page 77



4. Revenue Budget 2020/21 
 

The budget set by Budget Council on 26th February 2020 was £224,127k. Increases in 
budget in this financial year up to period 4 are detailed in the following table: 

 
4.1 

 

 
 
The following amounts have increased the Council’s Revenue budget since the period 2 
Finance Update report was finalised: 
 

 £2,416k Emergency funding for local government (tranche 3) in relation to 
Covid-19 

 £170k New burdens funding relating to the Covid 19 Business grant  

 £677k Business Rates Top up Grant final settlement adjustment 

 £292k S31 Business Rates relief grant adjustment 
 
Approval for the utilisation of funding provided by the Government to mitigate the 
additional expenditure/loss of income resulting from the impact of Covid-19 has been 
obtained in accordance with the Council’s constitution for previous funding received. 
Members are asked to approve the use of the third tranche of emergency Covid 19 
funding of £2,416k received in July 2020 to help to offset the financial impact of Covid 
19. The total emergency Covid 19 funding received is now £16,032k. 
 
The Revenue Budget Table in 4.1.2 provides detail of budget allocations and the 
estimated 2020/21 financial position. 
 

Approved by When Reason for change 
Amount 
(£'000) 

Budget Council  Mar-20 Approved budget 
   

224,127  

Cabinet Apr-20 Emergency Covid-19 Funding tranche 2   6,116  

Cabinet Apr-20 Hardship Funding   3,064  

Cabinet Apr-20 S31 - Covid-19 Grant Business Rates relief compensation 20,950  

Pending Jul-20 Emergency Covid-19 Funding tranche 3 2,416  

Pending Jul-20 Business Rates Top up Grant - final settlement adjustment 677  

Pending Jul-20 New Burdens grant relating to Covid 19 170  

Pending Jul-20 S31-Business Rates Grant Relief adjustment 292  

GRAND TOTAL  -  - 
   

257,812  

4.1.1 The forecast position as at the end of July 2020 is a General Fund overspend of £11,426k.  
 
This is a reduction of £6,213k from period 2 and is due to funding and mitigations against 
the forecast overspend in Adult Social Care and additional funding for Covid-19.  
 

Page 78



4.1.2 £10,888k is attributable to Covid-19 pressures which are net of the Covid-19 emergency 
funding; these pressures include £729k of 2020/21 savings proposals that are not 
currently achievable. Budget will be allocated to Directorates to offset the pressures 
related to Covid-19. 
 
Non Covid-19 pressures are currently £538k. 

 
The table below provides detail by Directorate: 

  

 
 
 

 The variations to controllable Revenue budget, by service, which are not related to 

Covid-19 are detailed below and full details can be found in Appendix A: 

The variations to controllable Revenue budget, by service, which are related to Covid-19 
are detailed below: 

Directorate/ Detail
Budget 

Council

Virements/

Contingency
Current Budget

Service and 

Corporate 

Uncontrollables

Current 

Controllable

Approved 

Net 

Budget

Forecast 

Controllable 

Outturn

Total In Year 

Saving/

(Overspend)

Previous 

Monitoring 

Report (July 

Cabinet)

Movement Since 

July Cabinet

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000

Adult Care 60,795 (236) 60,559 3,002 57,557 58,057 (500) (2,027) 1,527

Children's 65,735 1,424 67,159 17,925 49,234 49,042 192 295 (103)

Economy 15,721 (219) 15,502 520 14,982 15,152 (170) (85) (85)

Neighbourhoods 50,734 1,984 52,718 1,054 51,664 51,883 (219) (379) 160

Public Health and Wellbeing 20,586 540 21,126 1,782 19,344 19,344 - - -

Resources 8,825 3,368 12,193 (2,145) 14,338 14,186 152 - 152

TOTAL GENERAL SERVICES SPENDING 222,396 6,861 229,257 22,138 207,119 207,664 (545) (2,196) 1,651

Integrated Pool Budget Contribution From (102,339) - (102,339) - (102,339) (102,339) - -

Integrated Pool Budget Contribution To 102,339 - 102,339 - 102,339 102,339 - -

TOTAL POOLED BUDGETS - - - - - - - - -

Finance Control: Corporately Held Budgets 578 11,298 11,876 (19,424) 31,300 31,293 7 - 7

Covid-19 Emergency funding - 13,616 16,032 - 16,032 26,920 (10,888) (15,443) 4,555

Finance Control: Budget Pressures 1,153 (506) 647 - 647 647 - - -

TOTAL FINANCE CONTROL SPENDING 1,731 24,408 28,555 (19,424) 47,979 58,860 (10,881) (15,443) 4,562

NET EXPENDITURE REQUIREMENTS 224,127 31,269 257,812 2,714 255,098 266,524 (11,426) (17,639) 6,213

Page 79



4.1.3 
Service Narrative 

Amount 
£'000 

Adult Care 

Adult Social Care had an opening £2m pressure representing the 
continuation of services that were previously funded by Transformation 
Funding that was initially planned to be funded from a GM HSCP loan in 
2020/21 that ultimately was not available. This pressure has since reduced 
to £0.5m due to an additional one off contribution of £1m from the CCG 
towards expensive placements and reduced expenditure on residential 
placements of £0.5m. The Adult Care Service along with support from 
Finance Service is working to address how these budgets will be funded 
going forward. 

(500) 

Children's  

The Service is forecasting an in-year saving of £192k excluding Covid 
pressures. This relates to in year savings and over achievement of income 
on Personnel & Governors Services (£244k), vacant posts in Early 
Help/Years due to a restructure (£134k) and other minor savings detailed in 
Appendix A. There is a pressure in Child Protection & Care Proceedings of 
£53k in relation to translation fees. 
 
The High Needs block is forecasting a pressure of £657k which is 
increasing the deficit in the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) Reserve. There 
is a further pressure of £152k relating to a rise in demand in personal 
payments for children with Special Education Needs & Disabilities which is 
not related to the DSG Reserve deficit. 

192 

Economy 

The Economy Directorate is reporting a potential in-year pressure of £170k 
within Planning and Building Control and Asset Rationalisation from ongoing 
targeted savings that will not be achieved and budget pressures funding is 
to be requested.  There are also pressures within Properties due to the 
transfer of management of Bowlee Sports Centre and the closure of 
Springfield Park Barn. 

(170) 

Neighbourhoods 

The Neighbourhoods Directorate is reporting a potential in-year pressure of 
£219k. The main variance relates to a £350k pressure in respect of housing 
benefit and homelessness costs which are not fully covered by Government 
subsidy. Corporate funding has been earmarked to address any shortfall. 
Budget pressure funding of £40k is requested for a recurrent pressure in 
ICT due to lost school SLA contracts. There are several in year savings 
which are being used to offset the overspend including vacant posts and 
delays in projects which are detailed in Appendix A. 

(219) 

Finance Control Minor ad-hoc savings due to reduced interest payments  7 

Resources 

The Resources Directorate is reporting a potential in-year saving of £152k 
from current year employee savings from vacant posts, temporary 
arrangements and one off funding. These savings are being used to 
mitigate pressures within the Legal Shared Service with Manchester which 
are currently under discussion, and increased maintenance costs for the 
new I Trent Payroll system.  

152 

Total   (538) 
 

Page 80



  
The variations to controllable Revenue budget, by service, which are related to Covid-19 
are detailed below: 
 

Expenditure £'000s 

Adult Social Care  6,718  

Children's Social Care 2,729  

Education 481  

Highways and transport, Public Health & Housing 2,962  

Cultural & Related 2,229  

Environmental and regulatory services 1,134  

Finance & Corporate  4,077  

Other services 1,468  

Estimated Total Spending Pressure 21,798  

Less funding received for Infection Control, Test & Trace, Hardship 
Fund and Health (via CCG) 

(10,782) 

Estimated Funding Pressure 11,016  

Income £'000s 

Sales, fees and charges 4,906  

Commercial Income 10,998  

Estimated Total reduction in Income 15,904  

Total Estimated Pressure 26,920  

Government Emergency Funding (16,032) 

Residual Pressure 10,888    

 

  
The Government has developed an income compensation scheme for lost sales, fees 
and charges for 2020/21 as a result of the impact of Covid 19. The Council will be 
submitting claims that meet the criteria of the scheme to reduce the residual pressure. 
The scheme will not compensate the Council for the majority of income lost due to 
commercial loses not being eligible. 
 

 The Council has reviewed its level of Reserves, and Treasury Management strategy to 
maximise the use of any available one off funds to offset against the pressures caused 
by the impact of Covid-19. Currently the Council has indicated to the government that 
£7m of Reserves could be used; a £3m reserve established for Manchester Airport 
dividend pressures, and £4m of General Balances, established for various unforeseen 
issues, including demand pressures and a reduction in the collection of Business Rates 
and Council Tax. It is intended to replenish these reserves to their original value, and 
therefore they are only available as a short term measure. 
 

Page 81



 The forecast cost projections relating to Covid-19 include possible financial support for 
Link4Life, the Council’s culture and leisure provider. A recovery plan has been 
developed for Link4Life as it emerges from lockdown.  This has been discussed at 
Cabinet previously and will be monitored through the contract. 
 

 Work is on-going to assess the financial impact and timeframe involved relating to 
Covid-19. The longer term implications also need to be considered to support the 
Council in its financial planning going forward. 

 The Council will, with other Greater Manchester councils, continue to lobby the 
government to provide further funding to offset the ongoing financial impact of Covid-19. 
 

4.2 Health & Social Care Pool Budget 
 

As at the end of July 2020 the forecast gap in the Pool Fund for 2020/21 is £10,400k: 

 £2,100k of which is the forecast remaining element of the opening pool gap if the 
current health funding arrangements end on 30th September,  

 £7,800k relating to Covid-19 pressures, and 

 £500k pressure on Adult Social Care 
 

4.3 Budget Pressures 
 
The Budget Pressure Fund for 2020/21 reported to July Cabinet was £647k; the 
following table details adjustments and requests received to the end of July 2020.  It 
should be noted that due to the increased requests for budget pressures the unspent 
funds from 2019/20 will not be available towards the 2021/22 budget gap, as shown in 
the table. 

 

Page 82



 Service 

Ongoing 

£000s 

One 

off 

£000's 

Total 

£000s 

Narrative 

Neighbourhoods 0  9 9  

One off request approved at July Cabinet for Pennines 
Townships funds to support the Wardle and Smallbridge 
Football Club Project. 

Resources 127.9 0  127.9  

Insurance costs increase due to contract extension with 
changes to provision requested in P2 monitoring for future 
years, this should have been requested to start from 
current year 

Opening 
Balance 2020/21 
Period 4 359.9 150.4 510.3 

The balance brought forward is net of previously approved 
allocations 

Period 4 
Requests: 

Ongoing 
£’000s  

One off 
£’000s  

Total 
£’000s   Narrative 

Economy 2.5 0 2.5  
Request for ongoing budget pressures funding for 
Hopwood Hall CCTV  

Economy 50 0  50 
Request for ongoing budget pressures funding due to 
income target being unachievable in Building Control  

Economy 0  50 50  

One-off budget pressure funding requested for Planning 
Service to employ agency staff to deal with the 
unprecedented rise in enforcement cases, and to clear the 
backlog of planning applications 

Economy 0  12 12  
One off budget pressure funding is requested for 
Springfield Park Barn for emergency works 

Economy 0 20 20  
One off funding is required for the short term management 
of Bowlee Sports Centre and St Marys kick pitch while a 
solution is sought for the properties 

Economy 35 0 35 
Ongoing budget pressure funding is requested due to the 
unachievable savings target relating to asset rationalisation 

Neighbourhoods 39.9 0  39.9 

Budget pressures funding is requested for the loss of SLA 
contracts relating to the EDIT team (ICT) due to schools 
converting to Academies 

Neighbourhoods 26 0  26 

Ongoing budget pressure funding is requested for 
Information Governance as project relating to the ongoing 
costs around the implementation of GDPR cannot be 
funded through Transformation Funding as previously 
expected 

Resources (33.3) 0 (33.3) Budget pressure adjustment relating to the Legal Case 
Management system, request at period 2 was overstated. 

Resources 16.6 0  16.6 

Budget pressures funding is requested for I-Trent 
consultancy costs relating to changes from moving to the 
Cloud to facilitate the introduction of new 
functionality/modules and provide additional level of 
technical support. 

Resources 0 (14.7) (14.7) 

Individual Electoral Registration Government funding  has 
been received therefore the previously claimed pressure 
can be reduced and returned as a One Year Only 

Reversal of 
Budget Pressure 
Reduction 

(269.5) 0 (269.5) 

Due to the increased requests for allocations of budget 
pressures, unspent funds from 19/20 will not be available 
for the 21/22 budget gap. 

Remaining 
Balance 2020/21 

492.7 83.1 575.8 Total of remaining pressures budget 

 

Page 83



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 

If the requests are approved the balance remaining for budget pressures in 2020/21 is 
£576k; £493k ongoing and £83k one off. 
 

Savings 
 
The overall savings target for Services for 2020/21 is £4,451k (£4,171k recurrent, and 
£280k one-off). Services have identified savings proposals which have a balance to 
address relating to Covid-19 of £729k (which is included in the reported pressure of 
£10,888k in 4.1.2) as shown in the table below: 
 
 

 

Service Nature of Saving Savings 

Target - 

Ongoing

Savings 

Target - 

One Off

Achieved On-

Target

Mitigating 

Actions

Total 

Balance 

to 

Address

Balance 

to 

Address 

relating 

to Covid-

19

Balance 

to 

Address 

Non 

Covid-19

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000

Adult Care

Improved opportunities through person centred 

planning for people in Supported Living           300 (45)                 -                55                   -             200           200               -   

Adult Care Prevention Contracts (previously supported living)           180               -                   -                 -                     -             180           180               -   

Adult Care Moving On              50               -                 40               -                     -                10              10               -   

Sub Total Adults        1,284              60             330           624                   -             390           390               -   

Sub Total Children's           166               -                   -             166                   -                 -                 -                 -   

Economy N1 Riverside Utilisation Income              35               -                   -                 -                     -   35 35               -   

Sub Total Economy              60               -                 25               -                     -                35              35               -   

Neighbourhoods

Capitalisation of Building Support Team and 

reduction in Training Budget           100               -                   -                56                   -                44              44               -   

Neighbourhoods Waste Vehicle cleaning              17               -                   -                 -                     -                17              17               -   

Neighbourhoods

Additional SIMS income from schools outside 

Borough              20               -                   -                 -                     -                20              20               -   

Neighbourhoods Place based asset management system           100               -                   -                20                 40              40              40               -   

Sub Total Neighbourhoods 499 100 268 97 113 121 121 0

Public Health

System wide prevention review (including YP 

Substance Misuse and Sexual Health Contract 

review)           129               -                 26               -                     -             103           103               -   

Sub Total Public Health 230 0 127 0 0 103 103 0

Resources Early Payment Initiative               -             120                 -                40                   -                80              80               -   

Resources Mayoral Support              53               -                 18               -                   35               -                 -                 -   

Sub Total Public Resources 1,932 120 1,897 40 35 80 80 0

4,171 280 2,647 927 148 729 729 0Savings Grand Total with Balance to Address

Page 84



4.5 Transformation Fund 
 

The table below provides a summary of projects which have received funds in 2020/21 
and includes details on progress. 

 
Each of the projects aim to deliver and enable transformation and reform activity 
which as well as achieving wider objectives aim to deliver financial savings, or  
increased efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery. 
 

Page 85



 

 
 

Area of Service Description

Budget 

Council

In Year 

Movements

Current 

Budget

Forecast 

Spend 

20/21

Variation - 

Forecast 

spend to 

Current 

Budget

Explanation of Variances/Scheme Progression

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000

Adults Accommodation Strategy 120 (54) 66 60 6

There has been a delay to the progression of the Accommodation Strategy as consultancy support 

has been refocused to Covid-19 work, meaning that expenditure will be reduced from £120k to 

£60k, and resulting savings of £54k will not be realised until 2021/22

120 (54) 66 60 6

Economy
A Successful Future for 

Development Management
20 - 20 20 -

Mondrem CIC Consultants were appointed to work with the service on this project which has looked 

at  the following:  customer engagement and customer experience of the service, staff engagement 

sessions and workshops to map out existing business processes and identify opportunities for 

improvement prior to mapping out new business processes.  The team have also focused on 

developing a detailed understanding of demand, which has allowed them to better prioritise work 

and allocate resources.

Economy Strategic Planning 106 - 106 106 -

The transformation funding has been used to supplement the core budget for the Strategic Planning 

team.  This has allowed the team to continue to focus on work to support the Greater Manchester 

Spatial Framework which is an integral part of the growth plans for Rochdale and the Covid-19 

recovery plan. 

Economy

One Public Estate /GMCA - 

Integration Mgr & Support 

Officer

64 - 64 64 -

Funding provided for additional staff which has resulted in the achieving the management of the 

Council's participation in the various projects, filling the resource gap was the fundamental aim of the 

funding, so we could be fully involved.

190            -                   190            190            -                

Neighbourhoods Place Based Asset 66 - 66 66 - Project on target, this is funding a Consultant to deliver a new asset management system.

Neighbourhoods
Accelerated Housing (years 1 

-2)
121 - 121 121 -

Phase 2 of the review of Strategic Housing’s allocations and homeless services has now been 

completed and, through testing of a number of prototypes, new approaches to service delivery and 

changes to the existing out-sourced contracts are in preparation and it is intended to implement them 

following formal adoption by the Authority

Neighbourhoods Integrated Place Team 511 - 511 511 -

The team uses an evidence based approach to provide a combination of educational, practical and 

emotional support to enable people to do things for themselves using a “high challenge, high 

support” delivery method. Project is on target

698            -                   698            698            -                

Resources

Council property title and 

marketing project (Creation of 

2 FTE Post for 24 months) 

38 - 38 38 -
Having a dedicated resource has enabled matters to be completed much quicker which has resulted 

in increased capital receipts and associated legal fees.

Resources Oxygen Project 20 - 20 20 -
The scheme has been delayed due to Covid 19, it is anticipated to start in November 2020 which 

should generate savings of £40k

Resources
Stepping up approach to 

transformation
100 - 100 100 -

The funding for the Corporate Programme Management office is being utilised to progress various 

projects within the Council

Resources Payroll Transformation 60 - 60 60 -
Work to date includes analysis of current and future functions, automation of functions, Organisation 

Chart functionality within i trent, roll out of e-payslips.

218            -                   218            218            -                

GRAND TOTAL 1,226 (54) 1,172 1,166 6

RESOURCES TOTAL

ADULTS TOTAL

ECONOMY TOTAL

NEIGHBOURHOODS TOTAL

P
age 86



4.6 Capital Budget 2020/21 
 
The current forecast position for 2020/21 Capital Budget is £135,430k, with spend to 
date of £12,678k (9.4%).  The table below shows a summary of the budget movements 
to the end of July 2020: 
 

  
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

£'000s £'000s £'000s 

BUDGET AS AT END OF MAY 2020 156,560 50,394 32,653 

Capital Budget Changes 2,277    -       -    

Rephasing Requests P4 (23,407) 23,407  -    

BUDGET AS AT END OF JULY 2020 135,430 73,801 32,653 

 
 

4.6.1 Details of the changes and rephasing are below, both largely due to changes with 
external funding and project delivery delays.  As part of the financial monitoring and 
analysis of the ongoing pressures, being placed on the Council following the Covid 19 
pandemic a review of the Capital Programme has been undertaken to reduce the future 
debt repayment burden on the Council as part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
and understand spend in the current year and the impact on the Council’s cash flow. 

 The review of 2020/21 and 2021/22 capital budgets has focused on  Economy and 
Neighborhoods’ budgets to consider whether schemes could be re-prioritised, and 
rephased into future years or reduced.  The review has categorised projects within these 
budgets under several categories to assist with prioritisation and understanding to the 
link to revenue costs over and above repayment and risk.  
 
The intention from the review is to achieve a reduction of £1m of borrowing costs for the 
2021/22 and future years’ Revenue budgets. The outcome of the review is 

 included in the Revenue & Capital Budget report which is a separate agenda item for 
29th September Cabinet meeting. If approved by Members, the financial impact of the 
review on both Revenue and Capital budgets in 2020/21 will be included in the period 6 
Finance Update report which is due to be presented to 1st December 2020 Cabinet.  
This form of review of the current programme at the end of quarter 1 will form part of the 
budget monitoring and setting processes going forward. 
 

4.6.2 Capital Budget Changes 
 

Details of the net increase/ (reduction) to capital budgets are shown in the table below: 
 

Page 87



 

Service Narrative 
Funding 
Method 

Capital Budget 
Increases 
(Reductions) £000's 

Neighbourhoods 
Additional Local Transport Plan grant 
received 

External 
Funding 

2,295  

Children’s 
Services 

Correction to Siddal Moor Academy 
conversion allocation of Disabled 
Facilities Grant 

External 
Funding 

(18) 

Total Capital Budget Increases (Reductions)   2,277 

 
The additional Transport grant will be used to support funding of £5,794k which will be 
fully utilised in this financial year. 
 

4.6.3 Capital Re-phasing requests to the end of July 2020 are shown in the table below.  
These schemes are funded through external grants and therefore the rephasing does not 
have an impact on prudential borrowing and future repayments. 
 
The following table relates to Children’s Service requests to rephase budgets. 
 

 

Narrative 
Rephasing 
Requested 
£000s 

Early Years Capital Grant :-  Due to Covid-19 this will not 
be spent in this financial year but once childcare providers 
are running at a near full capacity again this will be 
reviewed in 2021/2022. 

19 

New Place Planning:-  The Service is in discussions with 
the Department for Education about wider sufficiency within 
the Borough and working on placements going forward 
over the next five years.  The building schemes to increase 
the number of pupil places at Brownhill Learning 
Community, Harwood Park, Castleton, St John's and 
secondary schools will be completed in the next financial 
year.  

22,000  

Special Provision Capital Fund: - Capital investments in the 
provision for pupils with Special Educational Needs and 
disabilities are ongoing this year with work on the Autistic 
Secondary level at Falinge Park and will continue into 
2021/22 with work on Castleton Primary, and Kingsway 
Park High school.  

304  

CWD Residential Home: - Only initial feasibility studies will 
be carried out in this financial year. 

1,084  

Total Rephasing 23,407 

Page 88



4.6.4 In order to protect the Authority financially, it is recommended that insurance is procured 
to cover the existing building and the contract works during the renovation period of 2 
years and 8 months. 
 
Early indications show there is a possibility that the total insurance costs will exceed 
£500k, but this will not be known for certain until we obtain quotations. 
 
Our insurance brokers have forewarned us that we may have difficulty obtaining any 
insurer to underwrite the project. Therefore, in order to attract insurers, they are advising 
that the arrangements are split into phases when approaching the insurance market - in 
that we arrange insurance for the existing building, for the lifetime of the renovation 
works, commencing January 2021 and that we then split the insurance for the actual 
contract works to align with the 2 phases of the project - Phase 1 to commence January 
2021 and Phase 2 July 2021. This approach has been recommended as insurers prefer 
to have knowledge of the identity of the contractors before quoting the risk – and this 
information will not be known for Phase 2 until 2021.  
 
If an insurer is willing to underwrite Phase 1 it is anticipated that quotations will be 
received in November, with the project commencing January 2021. This may therefore 
mean that an urgent decision is required between November and January for permission 
to award. 
 
Using the same timescales quotations for Phase 2 will therefore not be known until May 
2021. 
 
Approval is required to approach the insurance market for quotations for Phase 1 
immediately, and for Phase 2 in 2021. 
 

4.6.5 Neighbourhoods Service have requested to change the use of the budget allocated for 
Extended Library Hours (open+) of £150k with the budget allocated for CCTV Upgrade of 
£172k. The Extended Library Hours scheme will not be delivered at this time but may be 
revisited in the future. This request will enable the £322k budget to fund a new CCTV 
monitoring centre within the police station. Members are asked to approve this. 
 

4.6.6 Capital Receipts 
 
Capital receipts are received on the sale of various assets including land, buildings and 
vehicles. The forecast movements in the Capital Receipts Reserve during 2020/21, and 
provisionally for 2021/22 to 2022/23 are included in the table below: 
 

Page 89



 

Description 
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

 
£m 

 
£m 

 
£m 

Capital Receipts balance as at 1st April 2020 11.142 - - 

Use of Capital Receipts to fund 2019/20 Capital Programme, including 
prior year schemes rephased into 2020/21 

(7.660) - - 

Use of Capital Receipts to fund provisional 2021/22 and 2022/23 Capital 
Programmes, and 2020/21 rephasing into future years 

- (1.039) (0.044) 

Earmarked use of receipts to fund other future commitments  (5.809) (0.851) (0.706) 

Capital Receipts income 2.327 1.890 0.750 

Forecast uncommitted Capital Receipts balance as at 31st March 
2021 

 -   -   -  

 
The forecast uncommitted Capital Receipts Reserve balance as at the end of 2022/23 is 
nil as all uncommitted receipts are being earmarked towards the cost of the Highways 
Investment. 
 

4.7 Collection Fund 

4.7.1 The forecast Collection Fund outturn position for 2020/21 is a deficit of £30,450k, 
comprising: 
 

 £24,790k deficit relating to Business Rates, partially offset by Section 31 
grant of £20,950k; 

 £5,660k deficit relating to Council Tax. 
 

The 2020/21 Collection Fund is forecast to be significantly impacted by the impact of 
Covid-19 and Government initiatives. This will impact on the Council’s General Fund in 
2021/22, and there is expected to be a longer term impact on the level of Business Rates 
and Council Tax income. 
 

4.7.2 Table 1 shows the forecast 2020/21 Collection Fund position, and the allocation between 
precepting authorities. 
 

 Table 1 – 2020/21 Collection Fund forecast deficit 
 

  Business Rates Council Tax Total 

  % £'000 % £'000 £'000 

Forecast Collection Fund (surplus)/deficit 
at 31/03/21   24,790   5,660 30,450 

            

Preceptors' Share of 2020/21 outturn           

Rochdale BC 99 24,542 84.61 4,789 29,331 

GMCA Mayoral Police & Crime Commissioner  0 0 10.71 606 606 

GMCA Mayoral General  (including Fire 
Services)    1.00  248 4.68 265 513 

            

Total forecast outturn (surplus)/deficit 100 24,790 100 5,660 30,450 
 

Page 90



  
The Council’s share of the forecast Collection Fund deficit is £29,331k, which will be 
partially offset by Government Section 31 grant funding of £20,950k. 
 
The following table provides the explanation of variances relating to Business Rates: 
 

Explanation of variance 
Variation to 

budget, 
£'000 

Decreased net Business Rates income principally due to the government decision to give 100% relief 
to the Retail, Leisure and Hospitality sectors for 2020/21, linked to the Covid19 pandemic; Section 31 
grant to offset the discount given is received in the Council's General Fund. Reduced levels of gross 
income and higher levels of Empty Property discount are also forecast, linked to the impact of the 
pandemic.  

23,824 

Increased charge relating to the bad debt provision due to the likely impact of Covid19 on debt 
collection. 

1,732 

Actual surplus brought forward from 2019/20 is £766k higher than had been forecast as part of the 
2020/21 Budget process.  

(766) 

2020/21 Deficit 24,790 

 
 

 The following table provides an explanation of variances relating to Council Tax: 
 

Explanation of variance 
Variation to 

budget, 
£000 

Forecast reduced Council Tax income due mainly to delays in the level of new builds as a result of the 
impact of Covid19. 

407 

Forecast increased level of Local Council Tax Support discount given due to increased numbers of 
claimants, partially offset by government Hardship Funding. 

2,299 

Increased charge relating to the bad debt provision as a result of anticipated impact of Covid 19 on 
debt collection. 

1,340 

A deficit of £937k brought forward from 2019/20 instead of the £ (677) k surplus forecast as part of the 
2020/21 Budget process. This was mainly due to the decision to increase the level of the Bad Debt 
provision as a consequence of the likely impact of Covid19. 

1,614 

2020/21 Forecast Deficit 5,660 
 

  
The Council’s share of any 2020/21 Collection Fund deficit will be brought into the 
Council’s General Fund budget for 2021/22. 
 
There will be a longer term impact on Collection Fund income which is dependent on the 
recovery of businesses and households. This will impact on the Council’s core funding 
for services. Work is ongoing to assess the longer term impact on the Council’s financial 
position. 
 
 

4.8 Alternatives considered 

4.8.1 Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the Council’s 
Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is critical to ensuring 
financial resources are spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the 
Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early identification of variations against the 
plan and facilitates timely corrective action. 
 

Page 91



 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. Financial Implications 

 
The main body of the report provides a detailed analysis of the forecast 2020/21 
Finance Outturn position. 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 
 

6. There are no significant legal implications arising as a result of this Report but it 
should be noted that debts, which are recoverable, can be enforced by Court action 
in accordance with the Court Procedure Rules.  
 
The impact of Covid-19 pressures relating to additional expenditure and lost income 
is estimated to have a very significant impact on the Council’s financial position both 
in 2020/21 and in the medium term. The Council is completing a review of its 
reserves to assess whether some of the pressure may be mitigated in the short term. 
The use of reserves to address pressures as a result of the Covid-19 outbreak is a 
one off solution which cannot be sustained into future years. The Council has 
indicated that any reserves deployed would require replenishing to their original 
value. The Council is continuing to lobby the government to provide further funding 
to offset the pressures. 

 
Unresolved appeals against the revaluation assessments for 2005, 2010 and 2017 
cause uncertainty and financial risk for the Business Rates income retained by the 
Council. The situation is monitored on a monthly basis to ensure that any changes in 
the trend for successful appeals are recognised due to the future impact on Business 
Rates income and the impact for the provision for any backdated elements. 
 
The VOA alters rating assessments if new information comes to light indicating that 
the valuation is inaccurate. These could relate to a demolition, new property builds 
or other physical changes to a property. The number of alterations, financial impact 
and timing of the revaluations are not within the control of the Council. There is an 
on-going risk that issues decided nationally by the VOA could potentially impact on 
Rochdale BC’s Business Rates income. 

 
The future level of collection of Corporate Debt, Business Rates and Council Tax debt 
is a potential financial risk, particularly with the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. 
Collection performance is being monitored on a monthly basis to ensure that debt is 
recovered as efficiently and effectively as possible, whilst making adjustments to 
reflect the current circumstances being imposed on businesses and residents, and so 
that any trends may be highlighted and action taken as necessary, at the appropriate 
time. Debt collection is likely to be significantly affected by the impact of Covid-19, 
and the forecast 2020/21 bad debt charges and provisions have been increased to 
reflect the increased risk of non-collection. 
 

Consultation 

 
7. All services engage with the production of the directorate based financial 

information within this report. The Leadership Team, the Leader, Cabinet Member 
for Finance, and Opposition Portfolio holder for Finance have been informed of the 
forecast 2020/21 financial position of the Council and its implications for future 
years. The report is due to be presented to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 22nd September 2020. 

Page 92



 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. For further information about this 
report or access to any 
background papers contact 
Samantha Smith 

No1 Riverside Floor 2  

 

For Further Information Contact: Samantha Smith, 
Samantha.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk  
Tel : 01706 924198 

 

  

Page 93

mailto:Samantha.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk


Appendix A – Revenue Budget ‘Variations to budget’ narrative – July 2020 

Service 
Narrative 

Budget 
£'000s Outturn Variance 

Adult Care Management :- Minor variations 6,901 6,914 (13) 

  Neighbourhoods:- Forecast pressure from commissioned places for service users 41,495 42,056 (561) 

  Boroughwide Services:- Forecast pressures from commissioned places for service users 3,650 3,962 (312) 

  In House Provider Services:-  Forecast in-year saving due to staff turnover 875 621 254 

  
Governance Business Support & Home Improvement Agency:-  Forecast in-year saving due 
to staff turnover 

872 805 67 

  Commissioning:-  Forecast in-year saving from contracts and staff turnover 2,358 2,298 60 

  Statutory Functions:- minor variations 825 820 5 

  Adult Care Variation to Budget  56,976 57,476 (500) 

Children's  
Child Protection & Care Proceedings: - Translation Fee pressure, similar pressure in 2019/20 
as the demand has increased there is insufficient budget. 

2,285 2,338 (53) 

  
Early Help/Early Years: Savings in relation to vacant posts and delays in recruitment, the 
service are in the final stages of a restructure. 

5,012 4,878 134 

  
School Support: - Overachievement of income on Personnel and Governors Service and 
underspends on bus passes. 

1,378 1,134 244 

  

Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND):- Pressure on the High Needs block DSG 
£0.657m due to the continued rise in Education Health Care Plans. There is also an 
overspend on disabilities base funding of £0.152m re personal payments again due to a 
continued rise in demand in this area. 

6,338 7,137 (799) 

  Youth Service:- Small underspend on activities (25) (34) 9 

  
Contribution from DSG Reserve:- This is an increase to the deficit position - cumulative High 
Needs Block deficit £3.9m 

0 (657) 657 

P
age 94



  Children's Services Variation to Budget  14,988 14,796 192 

Finance Control Interest: - In-year saving due to internally borrowed and use of internal balances. 7,396 7,389 7 

  Finance Control Variation to Budget 7,396 7,389 7 

Economy 

Planning & Building Control: - The ongoing additional annual saving from Building Control fee 
income growth of £50k will not be achieved and a request for permanent funding is being 
submitted.  There is also a one year only budget pressure request of £50k to partially support 
the urgent appointment of agency staff to deal with the unprecedented rise in enforcement 
cases, and to clear a backlog of planning applications.  

794 894 (100) 

  
Properties: - One off budget pressures in relation to Bowlee Sports Centre/St Marys Kick 
Pitch, Springfield Park Barn and a permanent budget pressure request for CCTV annual 
maintenance costs at Hopwood Old Hall.   

28 63 (35) 

  

Asset Rationalisation: - The ongoing targeted saving relating to running costs/maintenance 
as a result of further disposal of assets will not be achieved. In 2019/20 one year only budget 
pressure funding was provided, and a request for permanent funding is being submitted at 
period 4. 

(53) (18) (35) 

  Economy Service Variation to Budget 769 939 (170) 

Neighbourhoods Facilities Management:-  In year saving due to delay in N1R Utilisation Project 2,699 2,662 37 

  
Environmental Management: - Pressures relating to the under achievement of income targets 
and to an increase in the rent of the depot.  These are offset by in year savings on equipment 
and fuel and from delayed filling of vacant posts. 

10,886 10,806 80 

  
ICT Service :- Pressure due to loss of SLA contract with schools, budget pressure funding 
requested 

4,102 4,142 (40) 

  Coroners :-   There is a in year saving due to delay in scanning project 634 569 65 

  
Community & Townships:-   In year saving due to vacant posts in Library Service and 
Registrars 

4,013 3,938 75 

P
age 95



  
Strategic Housing: - There is a £350k pressure in respect of housing benefit and 
homelessness costs which are not fully covered by Government subsidy. Corporate funding 
has been earmarked to address any shortfall. 

2,231 2,581 (350) 

  
Properties: - Pressure of £64k to manage the statutory service contracts and a shortfall of 
£22k of income generated from solar sites. 

238 324 (86) 

  Neighbourhoods Service Variation to Budget 24,803 25,022 (219) 

Resources Finance Services:-  In-year savings due to staffing and savings on Audit Fees 1,808 1,742 66 

  Other Managed Budgets:-  In-year savings due to staffing 4,977 4,739 238 

  
Revenues and Benefits: - In-year savings due to staffing, offset largely by pressures on 
Software. 

1,278 1,237 41 

  Legal Services: - Pressure within the Shared Legal Service with Manchester City Council.  1,825 2,057 (232) 

  
Human Resources: - In-year pressure due to reduced income and increased maintenance 
costs for the new iTrent system.  A request of £17k for funding of the increased costs due to 
the move to the Cloud for consultancy has been submitted. 

1,748 1,782 (34) 

  Internal Audit:-  In-year savings due to staffing 623 614 9 

  Governance:- In-year savings due to staffing 2,079 2,015 64 

  Resources Service Variation to Budget 14,338 14,186 152 

 Total Variation to Revenue Budget - July 2020 (538) 

 

 

  

P
age 96



Appendix B – Capital Forecast Spend by Scheme as at July 2020 

Service Scheme 
 2020/21 
budget, £k  

 2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

 
Variation, 
£k  

 
 2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

 2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

 Total 
budget, 
£k  

Adult Care Better Care Fund 563  563  -     -    -    563  

Adult Care 
Disabled Facilities 
Grant 

2,706  2,706  -     2,634  2,634  7,974  

Adult Care   3,269  3,269  -     2,634  2,634  8,537  

Children's 
Aiming High For 
Disabled Child 

42  42  -     -    -    42  

Children's 
Devolved Formula 
Capital 

1,259  1,259  -     483  483  2,225  

Children's 
Early Years Capital 
Grant 

19  -    19   -    -    19  

Children's New Place Planning 31,519  9,519  22,000   5,200  5,200  41,919  

Children's Schools Access 2  2  -     -    -    2  

Children's 
Schools Cap Condition 
Programme 

3,775  3,775  -     1,833  1,833  7,441  

Children's 
Healthy Pupils Capital 
Fund 

16  16  -     -    -    16  

Children's 
Special Provision 
Capital Fund 

608  304  304   -    -    608  

Children's CWD Residential Home 1,114  30  1,084   -    -    1,114  

Children's   36,632  14,613  23,407   7,516  7,516  51,664  

Economy 
Definitive ROW 
Improvement 
Programme 

54  54  -     -    -    54  

Economy 
River Roch Flood 
Storage 

2,020  2,020  -     1,600  3,727  7,347  

Economy 
Rochdale Gateways 
Environmental 
Programme 

46  46  -     -    -    46  

Economy 
Stakehill Industrial 
Estate 

51  51  -     -    -    51  

Economy 
Asset Development 
Fund 

2,713  2,713  -     -    -    2,713  

Economy Property Growth Fund 40,582  40,582  -     -    -    40,582  

Economy 
East Lancashire 
Railway 

402  402  -     -    -    402  

Economy Lower Falinge 4  4  -     -    -    4  

Economy 
Heywood 
South/Junction 19 

2,764  2,764  -     -    -    2,764  

Economy 
Railway Strategy Park 
& Ride 

306  306  -     -    -    306  

Economy 
Northern Gateway 
Feasibility & Study 

545  545  -     -    -    545  

Economy 
Pennine Holl Lake 
Feasibility 

46  46  -     -    -    46  

Economy 
Springfield Park Master 
Plan 

50  50  -     -    -    50  

Economy Metrolink Feasibility 79  79  -     -    -    79  

Page 97



Service Scheme 
 2020/21 

budget, £k  

 2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn, 

£k  

 
Variation, 

£k  
 

 2021/22 
budget, 

£k  

 2022/23 
budget, 

£k  

 Total 
budget, 

£k  

Economy 
Birch Fountain & Horse 
Trough-Middleton 

22  22  -     -    -    22  

Economy 
East Lancashire 
Railway - Castleton 
Mast 

500  500  -     1,000  -    1,500  

Economy 
Hopwood Old Hall - 
Feasibility 

50  50  -     -    -    50  

Economy 
SmithyBridge Railway 
Station 

400  400  -     -    -    400  

Economy 
Middleton Town Centre 
Phase 3 

106  106  -     -    -    106  

Economy 
P2 TCMP - 
Conservation area 
improvements 

-    -    -     -    -    -    

Economy 
Town Centre East 
Feasibility 

472  472  -     -    -    472  

Economy 
Town Hall Adaptation 
and Restoration 

4,286  4,286  -     -    4,331  8,617  

Economy Rochdale Market 205  205  -     -    -    205  

Economy Town Hall Square PH2 64  64  -     3,500  3,500  7,064  

Economy Drake Street Phase 2 470  470  -     150  100  720  

Economy 
Town Centre Schemes 
2016/17 

589  589  -     50  -    639  

Economy 
Rochdale Town Centre 
3 Year Strategy 

1,522  1,522  -     -    -    1,522  

Economy 
Hopwood Hall 
Refurbishment 

48  48  -     -    -    48  

Economy Middleton Masterplan 16  16  -     -    -    16  

Economy Heywood Masterplan 6  6  -     -    -    6  

Economy 
Town Centre 
Residential Strategy 

1,467  1,467  -     1,000  -    2,467  

Economy 
Town Centre 
Purchases 

-    -    -     -    -    -    

Economy 
Rochdale Riverside 
Phase 2 

2,279  2,279  -     -    -    2,279  

Economy 
Town Centre Capital 
Programme 

-    -    -     -    -    -    

Economy 
Milkstone Road Master 
Plan 

747  747  -     2,250  -    2,997  

Economy 
Hey/Midd/Litt Town 
Centre Masterplans 

160  160  -     -    -    160  

Economy   63,071  63,071  -     9,550  11,658  84,279  

Neighbourhoods 
ICT Infrastructure 
Refresh Programme 

567  567  -     444  444  1,455  

Neighbourhoods ICT Data Centre 162  162  -     -    -    162  

Neighbourhoods ICT Programmes (Staff) 526  526  -     500  500  1,526  

Page 98



Service Scheme 
 2020/21 

budget, £k  

 2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn, 

£k  

 
Variation, 

£k  
 

 2021/22 
budget, 

£k  

 2022/23 
budget, 

£k  

 Total 
budget, 

£k  

Neighbourhoods 
Townships Capital 
Programme 

489  489  -     400  400  1,289  

Neighbourhoods 
Housing Standards 
Fund 

564  564  -     800  800  2,164  

Neighbourhoods Kirkholt Investment 73  73  -     -    -    73  

Neighbourhoods New Cemetery Sites 714  714  -     -    -    714  

Neighbourhoods 
Replacement 
Parks/Street Machinery 

130  130  -     120  120  370  

Neighbourhoods Rights Of Way 88  88  -     80  80  248  

Neighbourhoods 
Rochdale Cemetery 
Lodge Repair 

176  176  -     -    -    176  

Neighbourhoods 
Section 106 - 
Environmental 
Management 

1,178  1,178  -     -    -    1,178  

Neighbourhoods 
Townships Capital - 
Environmental 
Management 

114  114  -     -    -    114  

Neighbourhoods 
Upgrade Play 
Equipment 

160  160  -     75  75  310  

Neighbourhoods 
Vehicle Replacement 
Programme 

2,776  2,776  -     655  1,839  5,270  

Neighbourhoods 
Waste Bin 
Replacement 
Programme 

60  60       60  360  1,080  

Neighbourhoods 
Waste Services 
Investment 

521  521  -     -    -    521  

Neighbourhoods 
Asset Management 
Group 

2,780  2,780  -     1,750  1,750  6,280  

Neighbourhoods Local Transport Plan 2,544  2,544  -     1,967  1,967  6,478  

Neighbourhoods 
Townships Capital - 
Highways 

465  465  -     -    -    465  

Neighbourhoods 
Burglary Reduction 
Scheme 

100  100  -     100  100  300  

Neighbourhoods 
Energy Efficiency 
Schemes 

84  84  -     -    -    84  

Neighbourhoods 
Coroners Service 
accommodation 

521  521  -     -    -    521  

Neighbourhoods 
Additional Highways 
Funding 

219  219  -     -    -    219  

Neighbourhoods J19 Feasibility 13,481  13,481  -     13,050  -    26,531  

Neighbourhoods 
Developer 
Contributions 

75  75  -     -    -    75  

Neighbourhoods 
Property Transfers 
From Townships 

42  42  -     -    -    42  

Neighbourhoods 
GM Full Fibre 
Programme 

926  926  -     -    -    926  

Neighbourhoods 
Service Desk System 
Replacement 

60  60  -     50  50  160  

Neighbourhoods 
Compulsory Purchase 
Order Programme 

2,639  2,639  -     1,000  1,000  4,639  

Page 99



Service Scheme 
 2020/21 

budget, £k  

 2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn, 

£k  

 
Variation, 

£k  
 

 2021/22 
budget, 

£k  

 2022/23 
budget, 

£k  

 Total 
budget, 

£k  

Neighbourhoods 
Travellers Authorised 
Stopping Site 

110  110  -     -    -    110  

Neighbourhoods 
Replacement F&E - 
Libraries 

220  220  -     -    -    220  

Neighbourhoods Climate Emergency 1,000  1,000  -     1,000  1,000  3,000  

Neighbourhoods Car Parking Machines 26  26  -     -    -    26  

Neighbourhoods 
Cashless System 
School Catering 

6  6  -     -    -    6  

Neighbourhoods 
Dippy Exhibition 
Equipment 

3  3  -     -    -    3  

Neighbourhoods N1R Revolving Doors -    -    -     120  -    120  

Neighbourhoods 
Allotments 2017-18 
Manifesto Funding 

108  108  -     65  -    173  

Neighbourhoods Accelerated Housing 2,955  2,955  -     1,000  -    3,955  

Neighbourhoods Affordable Housing 2,752  2,752  -     -    -    2,752  

Neighbourhoods 
Customer 
Transformation 
Programme 

1,225  1,225  -     150  -    1,375  

Neighbourhoods CCTV Upgrade 172  172  -     -    -    172  

Neighbourhoods 
GM Air Quality 
Monitoring Station 

52  52  -     -    -    52  

Neighbourhoods Town Centre Signage 62  62  -     -    -    62  

Neighbourhoods 
Highway Investment 
Programme 

5,545  5,545  -     3,000  -    8,545  

Neighbourhoods Bowlee Free School 1,384  1,384  -     -    -    1,384  

Neighbourhoods   48,154  48,154  -     26,686  10,485  85,325  

Public Health 
Link4Life Capital 
Project 

608  608  -     4,008  360  4,976  

Public Health  608 608 -  4,008 360 4,976 

Resources 
New HR & Payroll 
System 

151 151 -  - - 151 

Resources Manchester Airport 3,730 3,730 -  - - 3,730 

Resources Investment Fund 1,500 1,500 -  - - 1,500 

Resources  5,381 5,381 -  - - 5,381 

Total Capital 
Forecast Position 
at July 2020 

 158,837 135,430 23,407  50,394 32,653 241,884 

  

Page 100



Appendix C – Collection Fund 

Business Rates 

The 2020/21 forecast outturn position relating to Business Rates is a deficit 

of £24,790k.  

Description Budget 

2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn 

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 

(Surplus)/Deficit 
movement from 
previous update 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Gross income (87,190) (86,624) 566 (21) 

Net Small Business Rate relief 7,682 8,000 318 100 

Mandatory Charitable relief 4,354 4,354 0 0 

Discretionary relief 1,983 22,423 20,440 0 

Empties & Part Occupied relief 3,614 6,114 2,500 (500) 

Net Income (69,557) (45,733) 23,824 (421) 

Less:          

Charge re bad debt provision 800 2,532 1,732 345 

Allowance for cost of collection 308 308 0 0 

Provision for rateable value revaluations  3,932 3,932 0 0 

Renewable energy schemes 582 582 0 0 

Net yield (63,935) (38,379) 25,556 (76) 

2020/21 payments to preceptors/billing authority 63,935 63,935 0 0 

In year (surplus)/deficit 0 25,556 25,556 (76) 

(Surplus)/deficit brought forward from 2019/20 (1,103) (1,869) (766) 0 
Payments to preceptors/billing authority re 
2019/20 surplus per the 2020/21 Budget 
process 1,103 1,103 0 0 

Forecast (Surplus)/Deficit as at 31/03/2021 0 24,790 24,790 (76) 

 

Council Tax 

 
Net Income Raised 
 

The 2020/21 forecast position relating to Council Tax is a deficit of £5,660k.  

2020/21 Forecast Council Tax Income 

 

 

Page 101



Description Budget 
2020/21 
Outturn 

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 

movement 
from 

previous 
report 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

INCOME         

Income from Council Tax (144,213) (143,600) 613 (26) 

Income from premium on Empty Properties (453) (550) (97) -  

Council Tax discounts  14,598 14,397 (201) -  

Local Council Tax Support Scheme (LCTSS) 19,251 21,550 2,299 -  

Prior year adjustments 208 300 92 92 

Total income (110,609) (107,903) 2,706 66 

EXPENDITURE         

Charge re bad debt provision 2,212 3,552 1,340 10 

Total expenditure 2,212 3,552 1,340 10 

Net income to be raised for precept/ billing 
authority after LCTSS awarded (108,397) (104,351) 4,046 76 

2020/21 payments to Preceptors/billing authority 108,397 108,397 -  -  

In year (surplus)/deficit -  4,046 4,046 76 

(Surplus)/deficit brought forward from 2018/19 (677) 937 1,614 -  

Payments to preceptors re 2018/19 surplus as per the 
2019/20 Budget process 677 677 -  -  

Forecast (Surplus)/Deficit as at 31/03/2021 -  5,660 5,660 76 

 

Page 102



BOLTON MANCHESTER ROCHDALE STOCKPORT TRAFFORD 
BURY OLDHAM SALFORD TAMESIDE WIGAN 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY  
CORPORATE ISSUES AND REFORM OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
HELD TUESDAY 16 JUNE 2020 VIRTUAL MEETING VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 
PRESENT: 

Councillor Tom Pickstone Bury (Chair) 
Councillor Greg Stanton Manchester (Substitute) 
Councillor Hazel Gloster Oldham (Substitute) 
Councillor Sam Hamdani Oldham (Substitute) 
Councillor Colin McLaren Oldham 
Councillor Kallum Nolan Rochdale 
Councillor Ray Dutton  Rochdale (Substitute) 
Councillor Tanya Burch Salford 
Councillor David Jolley Salford 
Councillor Sean Anstee Trafford (Substitute) 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 

Andrew Lightfoot Deputy Chief Executive, GMCA 
Joanne Heron Statutory Scrutiny Officer, GMCA 
Jenny Hollamby Senior Governor & Scrutiny Officer, GMCA 
Jim Wallace Chief Fire Officer, GMFRS 
Dawn Docx Deputy Chief Fire Officer, GMFRS 
Tony Hunter Assistant Chief Fire Officer, GMFRS 
  
The Statutory Scrutiny Officer opened the meeting and welcomed everyone to the first 
virtual meeting of the Greater Manchester Corporate Issues & Reform Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee. The meeting was being livestreamed to members of the public in line with the 
latest legislation enabling meetings to take place virtually during the Coronavirus pandemic. 
 
CI&R/1/20 APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Anne Duffield (Bolton), Chris Goodwin 
(Oldham), John McGahan (Stockport), Dave Morgan (Trafford), Dena Ryness (Stockport), 
Teresa Smith (Tameside) and Pat Sullivan (Rochdale). 
 
CI&R/2/20 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 2020/21  
 
The Statutory Scrutiny Officer invited nominations for the role of Chair for the 2020/21 
Municipal Year. This was subject to meeting the requirement that the Chair and Vice-Chair 
were not Members of the same political party of which, the Mayor was a Member.  
 
The Committee agreed the appointment of Councillor Tim Pickstone (Bury) as Chair for the 
2020/21 Municipal Year. 
 

Page 103

Agenda Item 14



RESOLVED/- 
 
That Councillor Tim Pickstone (Bury) be appointed as Chair for the 2020/21 Municipal Year. 
 
CI&R/3/20 APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR 2020/21  
 
The Chair asked for nominations for the role of Vice-Chair for the 2020/21 Municipal Year. 
This was subject to meeting the requirement that the Chair and Vice-Chair were not 
Members of the same political party of which, the Mayor was a Member.  
 
The Committee agreed the appointment of Councillor John McGahan (Stockport) as Vice-
Chair for the 2020/21 Municipal Year. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That Councillor John McGahan (Stockport) be appointed as Vice-Chair for the 2020/21 
Municipal Year. 
 
CI&R/4/20 MEMBERSHIP OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER CORPORATE ISSUES & 

REFORM OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
The Committee noted its Membership for the 2020/21 Municipal Year. 
 
The Chair advised that there were still two vacancies (Bury and Manchester) and it was 
hoped that Districts would make their appointments as soon as possible. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the Committee Membership be noted. 
 
CI&R/5/20 MEMBERS CODE OF CONDUCT AND ANNUAL DECLARATION FORM  
 
Consideration was given to a reported that reminded Members that the GMCA’s Member 
Code of Conduct set out high expectations with regard to Members’ conduct. As Members of 
the GMCA’s Overview & Scrutiny Committees were co-opted on to a GMCA Committee, the 
GMCA Code applied to them when they were acting in this capacity. Members were also 
asked to complete the Annual Register of Interest Form, which would be sent electronically 
to them following the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That Members note the GMCA’s Member Code of Conduct (Appendix A of the report). 

 
2. That Members complete the Annual Register of Interest Form and return it to the GMCA. 
 

Page 104



CI&R/6/20 TERMS OF REFERENCE  
 
The Committee noted its Terms of Reference for the 2020/21 Municipal Year. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the Terms of Reference be noted. 
 
CI&R/7/20 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations received in relation to any item on the agenda. 
 
CI&R/8/20 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 11 FEBRUARY 2020  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 11 February 2020 be approved as a correct record. 
 
CI&R/9/20 GREATER MANCHESTER VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL 

 ENTERPRISE  (VCSE) ACCORD  
 
This item was deferred to the next meeting on 14 July 2020. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the item be deferred to the next meeting. 
 
CI&R/10/20 WORK PROGRAMME  
 
Members considered a report that set out the Committee’s Work Programme for Members 
to develop, review and agree. As there were only five Members of the Committee present at 
the meeting, the Chair proposed and Members agreed that an informal workshop (including 
Substitute Members) would take place to develop items for Work Programme prior to the 
next meeting on 14 July 2020. 
 
The agenda items agreed for the next meeting on 14 July 2020, were noted as: 
 
1. Greater Manchester Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) Accord  

 
2. High Rise Resident’s Survey 

 
3. GMCA Budgets  

 
4. COVID19 Recovery 
 
 

Page 105



RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That a Work Programme informal session be organised. 

 
2. That the above agenda items be considered at the next meeting on 14 July 2020. 
 
CI&R/11/20 MEMBERS ARE ASKED TO AGREE DATES AND TIMES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The dates of future meetings were agreed as: 
 

 14 July 2020 
 

 15 December 2020 

 8 September 2020 
 

 19 January 2021 

 6 October 2020 
 

 9 February 2021 

 10 November 2020 
 

 16 March 2021 

Regarding times of meetings, it was agreed that an email proposing three different times 
would be sent to Members to find out what worked best for them. Members needed to find 
a time to enable the Committee to be quorate. 
 
A Member suggested that more onus should be placed on Committee Members to help find 
substitutes should they not be able to attend meetings. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the dates of meetings be agreed. 

 
2. That Members be consulted about the times of future meetings. 
 

Page 106



 
 

CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY  
 

WORK PROGRAMME 2020/2021 
 

Who are we? 
 
The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee is made up of 11 Members 
(reflecting the Council’s political balance) who manage the functions of the 
Committee (as detailed within the Constitution of the Council- also see the 
how we do it section below).  The meeting dates and report deadline dates 
are as follows:   

Name of Committee Final Reports Deadline 
Agenda Publication 

Deadline 
Date of meeting 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee  
Thursday, 23rd July 2020 Monday, 27th July 2020 Tuesday, 4th August 2020 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 10th September 2020 

Monday, 14th September 

2020 

Tuesday, 22nd September 

2020 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 12th November 2020 

Monday, 16th November, 

2020 

Tuesday, 24th November 

2020 

Budget Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Wednesday, 26th January 2021 Friday, 28th January 2021 Monday, 8th February 2021 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 4th March 2021 Monday, 8th March, 2021 Tuesday, 16th March 2021 

 
 
What we do 
 
The Committee’s primary role is to hold the executive to account by way of 
undertaking policy and budget development reviews as well as 
questioning/challenging the judgement and decisions making of the 
Executive, Members, Portfolio Holders and Senior Officers. The Committee’s 
work is also supported by the study groups it commissions and monitors.  
 
How we do it 
 
The functions of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee are: 
 

 Develop a work programme detailing the objectives, timetable and 
methodology. 

 Responsible Committee for scrutiny of Townships generally; corporate 
service development and delivery; for scrutiny of partnerships or key 
contractors (e.g. Agilysis); corporate performance monitoring; 
corporate financial monitoring and the annual budget development 
consultation, and for overview of the respective Portfolio Holders and 
Directors. 

Page 107

Agenda Item 15



 Respond to consultation by Cabinet on relevant policy development 
and the annual budget proposals. 

 Scrutinise the in-year performance of Council Services and other 
appropriate bodies, in accordance with the Council’s Performance 
Management Framework and against approved Directorate Plans, 
where appropriate. 

 Scrutinise in-year budget performance. 

 Instigate the appropriate action in response to adverse service 
performance. 

 Scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by 
external agencies (where appropriate to this Committee). 

 Review and scrutinise executive decisions in accordance with the 
Council’s Constitution, which have been called-in by Members of the 
Council. 

 Receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives 
on outside bodies, and to direct representatives to report to the 
Council, where appropriate. 

 Commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to 
Council Services and issues directly affecting the Borough and, where 
appropriate, to make recommendations to the Cabinet arising from 
such studies and reviews. 

 Consider Annual Service Plans in line with Council Policy (Part 4E - 
Constitution of the Council). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 108



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – MEETINGS IN 
20120/2021 

 
4th August 2020 

 
 
8th September 2020 
 

Work Programme  To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  

Directorate Plans 2020/2021 
(Resources and Neighbourhoods) 

 

Health Related Absence Reporting  

Employment Equality Report 2019/2020  

Corporate Complaints - Update Financial scrutiny 

Proposed Discretionary Fees and 
Charges for 2021/2022 

Financial scrutiny  

Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation (P4) – including Revenue 
Budget and Capital Programme 
proposals 

Financial scrutiny 

Cyber Security  Request from the Committee’s last 
meeting 

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes for information 

 
 
24th November 2020 
 

Work Programme  To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme  

Call-in/Member items/other referrals    

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2020/2021 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  

Directorate Plan Updates (4th Quarter 
2019/2020) 

 Resources Directorate 

 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 
Services) Directorate 

Performance management and 
monitoring 

Finance Update 2020/2021  

Treasury Management Year-End Report 
2019/20 

 

Budget 2021/22 to 2023/24 Guidelines 
and Timetable 

 

Property Growth Fund – Outturn report 
2019/2020 

 

Township Plan 2020- 2022  

  

Page 109



Corporate Complaints report  

Local Government Ombudsman:  
Annual Review 2019/2020 

Performance monitoring and 
management 

Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation (P6) 
 

Financial scrutiny 

Schools Outturn report 2019/2020 Performance monitoring and 
management 

Insurance Claims Report (including vfm 
presentation from the Council’s 
insurance brokerage representatives) 

Financial scrutiny 

Directorate Plan Updates (1st and 2nd 
Quarters 2020/2021) 

 Resources Directorate 
Neighbourhoods (Corporate Services) 
Directorate 

 

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes for information 

 
 
8th February 2021 (Budget Scrutiny meeting) 

 
 
16th March 2021 
 

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals    

Directorate Plan Updates (3rd Quarter 
2020/2021) 

 Resources Directorate 

 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 
Services) Directorate 

Performance monitoring and 
management 

Corporate Complaints (6 monthly 
update) 

Performance monitoring and 
management 

Health Related Absence (6 monthly Performance monitoring and 

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme  

Call-in/Member items/other referrals    

Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation. Including; 

 Council Tax 

 Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 Revenue and Capital Budgets 
and Council Tax 2021/2022  
Robustness of the budget 

 Detail on Children’s budget 

Budget development 

Treasury Management Strategy Budget Scrutiny 

Corporate Debt Strategy Budget Scrutiny 

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes for information 

Page 110



update) management 

Financial Update Financial scrutiny 

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes for information 

 
Other items to be assigned a meeting 
 

Communications Priorities  

PSR – Public Sector Reform  

  

  

 

Page 111



Document is Restricted

Page 112

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes
	COSActionsList

	5 Health Related Absence Report
	Append. 1 for Health Related Absence Report

	6 Employment Equality Report
	7 Resources Directorate Plan 2020/2021
	8 Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020/2021
	9 3rd & 4th Quarter Corporate Complaints
	Append. 1 for 3rd & 4th Quarter Corporate Complaints

	10 Financial Update (Period 4) 2020/2021
	14 Greater Manchester Corporate Issues and Reform Overview & Scrutiny Committee.
	15 Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme 2020/2021
	17 Cyber Security

